
 
 

 
 
 
 

Visit SLO CAL Executive Committee Agenda 
Tuesday, August 13, 2019 

11:30am 
Visit SLO CAL Conference Room 

1334 Marsh Street, San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT (On Non-Agenda Items) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
3. Approval of July 3, 2019 Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 
4. Approval of June/Year-End Financials 
5. Approval of Visit SLO CAL Employee Handbook Updates 
6. Ratification of Victor Popp’s Appointed Seat 

Staff will request Committee approval of the July 3, 2019 Executive Committee Meeting Minutes, June/Year-End 
Financials, updates to Visit SLO CAL’s Employee Handbook and the ratification of Victor Popp’s appointed seat. 
 
 

 
 
 
7. CEO Report (20 min) 

Staff will provide an update on current projects, reporting and areas of focus for the months ahead. 
 
 
 

 
8. Executive Committee Seat (10 min) – motion required 

The Committee will discuss the Secretary seat on the Executive Committee and make a recommendation for Board 
approval. 
 

9. Air Service Development (10 min) 
Staff will provide an update on recent air service development efforts. 
 

10. CLIA Membership (15 min) – motion required 
The Committee will review a proposed partnership agreement with California Lodging Industry Association (CLIA) that 
would provide full benefits for all SLO CAL hotels, and make a recommendation for Board approval. 

 
11. Advocacy Plan (25 min) – motion required 

The Committee will review the draft of Visit SLO CAL’s Advocacy Plan and make a recommendation for Board approval. 
 

12. TMD Renewal Update (25 min)  
Staff will provide an update on the TMD renewal process, including petition signatures to date, timeline, key next steps 
and needed Board assistance. 

 
13. Marketing Update (5 min) 

Staff will provide an update on key marketing initiatives. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS                         C. Davison 

AGENDA 

Visit SLO CAL Executive Committee 

BUSINESS ITEMS                       C. Davison 

CONSENT AGENDA – motion required                     C. Davison 

CEO REPORT                                              C. Davison 



 
ADJOURN. 
 

Brown Act Notice: Each speaker is limited to two minutes of public comment for items not on the agenda. Public 
comment for each agenda item will be called for separately and is also limited to 2 minutes per speaker. State law does 
not allow the Executive Committee to discuss or take action on issues not on the agenda, except that members of the 
Committee may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by the person giving public comment. Staff may 
be directed by the Committee to follow-up on such items and/or place them on the next Committee agenda.  The order of 
agenda items is listed for reference and items may be taken in any order deemed appropriate by the Executive 
Committee.   
 
ADA Notice: Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities.  If you require special assistance to participate in 
the meeting, notify Brendan Pringle at (805) 541-8000 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



r 

Visit SLO CAL Executive Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, July 3, 2019 
11:30am 

Visit SLO CAL Conference Room 
1334 Marsh Street, San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Clint Pearce

PRESENT: Mark Eads, Aaron Graves, Jay Jamison, Clint Pearce 

ABSENT: None 

STAFF PRESENT: Chuck Davison, Brendan Pringle 

Call to Order at 11:34 am. 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT (On Non-Agenda Items)

None. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

3. Approval of June 21, 2019 Executive Committee Meeting Minutes

Public Comment – None. 

Committee Discussion. 

ACTION: Moved by Jamison/Eads to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

Motion carried: 4:0 

CEO REPORT 

4. CEO Report

Davison provided an update on the City of Grover Beach’s new ordinance on short-term rentals (STRs), as well as the status 
of the City of Paso Robles’ proposed ordinance on STRs. On June 26, 2019, Visit SLO CAL and the SLO County Regional 
Airport announced new direct air service from Las Vegas; the flight launches October 17 and will run four days per week 
(Thursday, Friday, Sunday, Monday). Davison shared a note that Visit SLO CAL received from American Sky, a UK travel 
company, demonstrating the immediate impact of the IPW FAM that the organization hosted. He reported out on the 

MINUTES 

Visit SLO CAL Executive Committee 



impact of China’s travel warning for the U.S., noting that it has not led to major reverberations, based on data from Visit 
California. Visit California will be staying the course for its integrated marketing in China, with an added layer of “All Dreams 
Welcome” messaging, and most China trade partners are positive about the current situation. Forecasts for visitation 
growth remain positive as well. Davison reported out on his meeting on June 24, 2019 with Coraggio Group to discuss the 
build of a shared accountability model for the team, and some changes to the team meeting structure. He also reported out 
on local meetings and his upcoming travel schedule.  

Public Comment – None. 

Committee Discussion.  

BUSINESS ITEMS 

5. Executive Committee Seat

Upon the Executive Committee’s recommendation at the June 21, 2019 meeting, Davison met with Hemant Patel to discuss 
his interest in the open Executive Committee seat, which was vacated by John Arnold on June 18, 2019. Patel informed 
Davison on July 1 that he would be interested in joining the Executive Committee if the Committee felt he could add value. 
Davison noted that the Board would take nominations and appoint the seat at the July 17, 2019 meeting, and once the seat 
is filled, a new Vice Chair would be established in a second motion. Davison requested nominations from the Committee for 
the Vice Chair position. 

Public Comment – None. 

Committee Discussion.  

ACTION: Moved by Jamison/Graves to recommend that the Board appoint Mark Eads as Vice Chair of the Executive 
Committee. 

Motion carried: 3:0:1 
Eads abstained. 

6. Community Engagement Plan

Davison noted that based on the feedback at the June 21, 2019 Executive Committee meeting, Visit SLO CAL made some 
minor changes to the Community Engagement Plan, namely that not every piece of the strategy will take the same priority, 
nor will all pieces be done at once. The team will be focused on investor activations that show investors responsible for 
approving the TMD that Visit SLO CAL’s team is focused on priorities that impact them directly first and foremost. Running 
ads, recording messages and getting merchandise in stores will not be the present focus. Davison recapped the Objectives, 
Strategies and high-level components of Visit SLO CAL’s draft Community Engagement Plan, and outlined the measures of 
success. 

Public Comment – None.  

Committee Discussion.  

ACTION: Moved by Graves/Eads to recommend Board approval of the Community Engagement Plan. 

Motion carried: 4:0 

7. Surfers of Tomorrow Sponsorship

Davison outlined a title sponsorship opportunity with the World Surf League’s Surfers of Tomorrow of two competitions – 
the Pismo Beach Open, an existing event that will occur in January, and the establishment of a second event in Morro Bay 



that would occur in February. The events would be branded as the “SLO CAL Open at Pismo Beach” and the “SLO CAL Open 
at Morro Rock,” respectively. Davison provided background on the event, and outlined the sponsorship value and key 
proposed components of the activation. The activation would include up to a $40k cash sponsorship and an in-kind 
promotion of up to $20k in one-time branding and promotion investment. He also noted that the goal would be to 
eventually get a third event in the county in either Cayucos or Oceano. Davison outlined how this type of a title event tied 
to the DMS recommendations regarding signature events for the county.  Davison requested a motion to recommend 
Board approval to enter into contract negotiations. 

Public Comment – None. 

Committee Discussion. 

ACTION: Moved by Jamison/Graves to recommend Board approval to allow the President & CEO to enter into contract 
negotiations with World Surf League’s Surfers of Tomorrow, establishing a sponsorship of $40k cash and up to $20k in-kind 
sponsorship for the SLO CAL Open contests. 

Motion carried: 4:0 

8. Oceano Dunes Advocacy

California Coastal Commission (CCC) and California State Parks (CSP) are struggling for control of the future of the Oceano 
Dunes State Park. CCC and CSP believe that their different sets of guidelines supersede each others’ and CCC believes that it 
is time to begin the full closure of the Oceano Dunes State Vehicular Recreation Area (ODSVRA). Davison outlined the 
outreach and coalition efforts that have already taken place in the community, and noted that at the present time, the City 
of Grover Beach and the City of Pismo Beach will not be taking a formal position on the issue, although Pismo Beach City 
Manager Jim Lewis recommended that Visit SLO CAL consider providing additional research on the economic impact of the 
park, since previously conducted research appears incomplete. State Senator Monning’s office is tracking the issue closely, 
and Assemblyman Jordan Cunningham’s office is drafting a letter of support and engaging segments of the industry that 
would be impacted. The CCC’s long-term strategy includes several new regulations, and would also begin planning for the 
full closure of ODSVRA. The CCC will be holding a meeting in San Luis Obispo on July 11, 2019 to discuss action on the issue. 
Davison noted that Visit SLO CAL provided a middle-ground quote to the Tribune, which recently published an article on the 
issue. He added that the impact of the news was so broad-reaching that the CEO of Visit Fairfield sent the story link to DMA 
West’s Executive Director, asking if it will affect the DMA West Leadership Summit event we are hosting here in late July. 
Davison asked the Committee for feedback, at the request of South County partners, on what advocacy role Visit SLO CAL 
should play on this issue, e.g., a draft letter of coalition support and public comment at the CCC meeting.  

Public Comment – None. 

Committee Discussion.   

ACTION: Moved by Jamison/Eads to allow Visit SLO CAL to advocate on behalf of the tourism community supporting the 
Oceano Dunes and the need for it to remain open as a critical economic driver for the destination. 

Motion carried: 4:0 

9. Morgan Stanley CD Account Update

Davison outlined the background and the purpose of Visit SLO CAL’s laddered CDs, managed by Morgan Stanley. Visit SLO 
CAL’s account opened with a beginning total value of $500k and reserve funds have been swept from Visit SLO CAL’s 
operating account to a Morgan Stanley accounts on a bi-monthly basis, following the approval of financials by the Board. 
The two accounts are now valued at $770,095.59 and total interest accrued over the last 18 months has totaled $25,349.98. 



Public Comment – None. 

Committee Discussion. 

10. TMD Renewal Update

Davison noted that Visit SLO CAL is waiting for an update from the County on the release of petitions. Guy Savage, Assistant 
CAO, informed us that the county did not need anything from Visit SLO CAL at this time in order to move the process 
forward. Davison outlined the next steps in the process. 

Public Comment – None. 

Committee Discussion.   

ADJOURNMENT 

ACTION: Moved by Pearce/Jamison to adjourn at 1:03 pm. 



Income This Month

Reforecast 

Budget for 

Month MTD Variance

MTD Actual v. 

Budget %

MTD % of Total 

Income/Expenses FISCAL YEAR

Reforecasted 

Budget Fiscal 

Year Variance

Actual v. 

Budget %

% of Total 

Income/Expenses

Collected from Prior Year Assessments 7,732$     -$    7,732$    100.00% 1.25% 189,426$     181,694$     7,732$     104.26% 4.13%

Other Revenue 1,075$     850$    225$    126.44% 0.17% 11,159$     9,831$     1,328$     113.51% 0.24%

Co-op Revenue 59,087$     45,390$     13,697$     130.18% 9.58% 93,449$     141,801$     (51,163)$     65.90% 2.04%

TMD Income:

SLO County Unincorporated 137,484$     137,484$     -$    100.00% 22.29% 1,110,505$     1,110,505$     0$     100.00% 24.21%

SLO City 92,671$     92,671$     -$    100.00% 15.03% 783,852$     783,852$     (0)$    100.00% 17.09%

Pismo Beach 115,889$     115,889$     -$    100.00% 18.79% 1,023,191$     1,023,191$     0$     100.00% 22.31%

Morro Bay 37,019$     37,019$     -$    100.00% 6.00% 342,760$     342,760$     0$     100.00% 7.47%

Paso Robles 61,711$     61,711$     -$    100.00% 10.01% 547,004$     547,004$     (0)$    100.00% 11.93%

Arroyo Grande 11,523$     11,523$     -$    100.00% 1.87% 95,062$     95,062$     0$     100.00% 2.07%

Atascadero (quarterly) 38,743$     38,743$     -$    100.00% 6.28% 136,628$     136,628$     -$    100.00% 2.98%

Grover Beach 4,793$     4,793$     -$    100.00% 0.78% 36,544$     36,544$     0$     100.00% 0.80%

Adjustment for Actual TMD Collected 44,402$     -$    44,402$    100.00% 7.20% 193,397$     181,060$     12,337$     106.81% 4.22%

Interest Income 4,622$     600$     4,022$     770.39% 0.75% 23,396$     10,019$     13,377$     233.52% 0.51%

Total Income 616,752$     546,674$     70,078$     112.82% 100.00% 4,586,374$     4,599,952$     (16,389)$     99.70% 100.00%

Expenses
Contingency Reserve 27,652$     25,034$     2,618$     110.46% 5.32% 223,476$     222,407$     1,070$     100.48% 4.96%

G&A 20,749$     22,227$     (1,478)$     93.35% 3.99% 272,603$     274,825$     (2,222)$     99.19% 6.05%

Industry Research and Resources 80,437$     42,084$     38,353$     191.13% 15.49% 709,025$     680,624$     28,401$     104.17% 15.74%

Travel Trade 173,034$     128,026$     45,008$     135.16% 33.31% 452,101$     421,439$     30,662$     107.28% 10.04%

Communications 38,641$     57,361$     (18,719)$     67.37% 7.44% 323,085$     392,183$     (69,097)$     82.38% 7.17%

Advertising 143,702$     219,119$     (75,416)$     65.58% 27.67% 1,986,729$     2,109,249$     (122,521)$     94.19% 44.11%

Promotions 3,864$     2,507$     1,357$     154.14% 0.74% 43,736$     49,551$     (5,815)$     88.26% 0.97%

Events 2,012$     1,786$     226$     112.68% 0.39% 135,934$     138,674$     (2,740)$     98.02% 3.02%

Digital Marketing 29,324$     28,617$     707$     102.47% 5.65% 332,116$     330,681$     1,436$     100.43% 7.37%

Film Commission -$    1,846$    (1,846)$     0.00% 0.00% 25,351$     41,085$     (15,734)$     61.70% 0.56%

Total Expenses 519,417$     528,606$     (9,189)$     98.26% 100.00% 4,504,157$     4,660,717$     (156,560)$     96.64% 100.00%

Surplus(Deficit) 97,335$     18,067$     79,268$     538.74% 82,217$     (60,764)$     140,170$     -135.30%

Cash Flow 
Surplus (Deficit) 97,335$     82,217$     

Beginning Cash Balance 1,812,451$     1,214,317$     

Change in Accounts Receivable (221,599)$     (163,905)$     

Change in Accrued Expenses (246,069)$     (30,666)$     

Change in Prepaid Expenses 132,914$     76,231$     

Change in Accounts Payable (18,690)$     182,323$     

Change in Reserve Contingency 27,652$     223,476$     

Ending Cash Balance 1,583,994$     1,583,994$     

Contingency Reserve - 5% of Cumulative Revenue (789,430)$     (789,430)$     

Liability on  Balance Sheet

Net Available Cash 794,565$     794,564$     

Comments to the Board:

- All TMD amounts accrued through April have been collected.

- Monies received from partners to help fund initiatives (co-op) are now being recorded as Income, versus a credit to Expenses as they have been recorded in the past.

San Luis Obispo County

Visitors & Conference Bureau

2018/2019 Financial Summary - June

- $97k surplus for June ($79k larger surplus than budgeted).  $82k surplus for the fiscal year ($140k larger surplus than budgeted).



Jun 30, 19 Jun 30, 18 $ Change % Change

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1010 ꞏ Bank of the Sierra - TMD 549,306.35 483,355.53 65,950.82 13.6%
1020 ꞏ Bank of the Sierra - Membership 264,383.51 201,886.73 62,496.78 31.0%
1030 ꞏ Morgan Stanley - TMD 666,511.29 430,886.33 235,624.96 54.7%
1040 ꞏ Morgan Stanley - Membership 103,793.30 100,407.50 3,385.80 3.4%

Total Checking/Savings 1,583,994.45 1,216,536.09 367,458.36 30.2%

Accounts Receivable
1200 ꞏ Accounts Receivable 910,690.08 746,785.24 163,904.84 22.0%

Total Accounts Receivable 910,690.08 746,785.24 163,904.84 22.0%

Other Current Assets
1320 ꞏ Prepaid Rent 4,369.95 4,369.95 0.00 0.0%
1340 ꞏ Workman's Comp Deposit 367.00 387.00 -20.00 -5.2%
1350 ꞏ Prepaid Expenses 54,803.10 131,001.15 -76,198.05 -58.2%
1330 ꞏ Employee Advances 7.26 20.57 -13.31 -64.7%
1499 ꞏ Undeposited Funds 0.00 -2,219.00 2,219.00 100.0%

Total Other Current Assets 59,547.31 133,559.67 -74,012.36 -55.4%

Total Current Assets 2,554,231.84 2,096,881.00 457,350.84 21.8%

Fixed Assets
1400 ꞏ Fixed Assets

1405 ꞏ Computer Hardware/Software 24,216.44 24,216.44 0.00 0.0%
1410 ꞏ Furniture & Fixtures 91,012.07 91,012.07 0.00 0.0%
1415 ꞏ Leasehold Improvements 37,301.15 37,301.15 0.00 0.0%
1425 ꞏ Office Equipment 14,560.10 14,560.10 0.00 0.0%

Total 1400 ꞏ Fixed Assets 167,089.76 167,089.76 0.00 0.0%

1500 ꞏ Accumulated Depreciation
1505 ꞏ Comp. Hdwr/Sftwr. Acc. Depr. -15,088.17 -15,088.17 0.00 0.0%
1510 ꞏ Furn. & Fixt. Accum. Depr. -6,208.00 -6,208.00 0.00 0.0%
1515 ꞏ Leasehold Imp. Accum. Depr. -1,630.00 -1,630.00 0.00 0.0%
1525 ꞏ Office Equip. Accum. Depr. -4,915.00 -4,915.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 1500 ꞏ Accumulated Depreciation -27,841.17 -27,841.17 0.00 0.0%

Total Fixed Assets 139,248.59 139,248.59 0.00 0.0%

Other Assets
1600 ꞏ Intangibles

1605 ꞏ Trademark - Slocal 15,750.00 15,750.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 1600 ꞏ Intangibles 15,750.00 15,750.00 0.00 0.0%

Total Other Assets 15,750.00 15,750.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL ASSETS 2,709,230.43 2,251,879.59 457,350.84 20.3%

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 ꞏ Accounts Payable 330,771.24 162,914.22 167,857.02 103.0%

Total Accounts Payable 330,771.24 162,914.22 167,857.02 103.0%

Credit Cards
2060 ꞏ American Express Credit Card 24,242.85 9,776.00 14,466.85 148.0%

Total Credit Cards 24,242.85 9,776.00 14,466.85 148.0%

Other Current Liabilities
2070 ꞏ Accrued Liabilities 565.58 30,526.99 -29,961.41 -98.2%
2100 ꞏ Payroll Liabilities

2160 ꞏ Health Insurance Withheld -532.45 172.19 -704.64 -409.2%

Total 2100 ꞏ Payroll Liabilities -532.45 172.19 -704.64 -409.2%

Total Other Current Liabilities 33.13 30,699.18 -30,666.05 -99.9%

Total Current Liabilities 355,047.22 203,389.40 151,657.82 74.6%

Total Liabilities 355,047.22 203,389.40 151,657.82 74.6%

Equity
3120 ꞏ Reserved Earnings 789,429.84 565,953.40 223,476.44 39.5%

2:48 PM Visit SLO CAL

07/23/19 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2019

Page 1



Jun 30, 19 Jun 30, 18 $ Change % Change

3130 ꞏ Retained Earnings 1,482,536.79 1,125,416.90 357,119.89 31.7%
Net Income 82,216.58 357,119.89 -274,903.31 -77.0%

Total Equity 2,354,183.21 2,048,490.19 305,693.02 14.9%

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,709,230.43 2,251,879.59 457,350.84 20.3%

2:48 PM Visit SLO CAL

07/23/19 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2019

Page 2



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 1 of 73 

  

Visit SLO CAL 

Employee Handbook 

A Manual of  

Employee Benefits & 

Personnel Policies 

Updated: August 2019 

Photo: Courtesy of the Highway One Discovery Route 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 2 of 73 

Table of Contents 

Strategic Direction 2020 ................................................................................................................ 4 
Our Vision ..................................................................................................................................... 5 
Our Mission ................................................................................................................................... 5 
Our Values .................................................................................................................................... 5 
Our Reputation .............................................................................................................................. 5 
Our Position .................................................................................................................................. 5 
Strategic Imperatives .................................................................................................................... 6 

Employment Policies and Practices ............................................................................................ 8 
Introductory Statement.................................................................................................................. 9 
Right to Revise .............................................................................................................................. 9 
At-Will Employment Status ......................................................................................................... 10 
Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Prevention ............................................................ 10 
Drug and Alcohol Abuse ............................................................................................................. 13 

Workplace Conduct ..................................................................................................................... 15 
Standards of Conduct ................................................................................................................. 16 
Disciplinary Action Policy ............................................................................................................ 18 
Workplace Violence .................................................................................................................... 19 
Workplace Bullying ..................................................................................................................... 20 

General Practices ........................................................................................................................ 22 
Introductory Period ...................................................................................................................... 23 
Employee Classification .............................................................................................................. 23 
Attendance & Standard Working Hours ...................................................................................... 25 
Time Card Regulations ............................................................................................................... 25 
Meal and Rest Policies ............................................................................................................... 27 
Overtime Pay .............................................................................................................................. 28 
Pay for Mandatory Meetings/Training ......................................................................................... 28 
Continuous Learning Program .................................................................................................... 29 
Pay Periods & Check Distributions ............................................................................................. 30 
Automatic Deposit ....................................................................................................................... 30 
Personnel Records Policy ........................................................................................................... 31 
Performance Evaluations ............................................................................................................ 32 
Employee References................................................................................................................. 33 
Benefits Overview ....................................................................................................................... 33 
Employment Taxes & Voluntary Deductions .............................................................................. 34 

Time Away From Work ................................................................................................................ 36 
Personal Leave of Absense ........................................................................................................ 37 
Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault or Stalking Leave and Accommodation ............................. 37 
Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault or Stalking Leave for Treatment ........................................ 38 
General/Personal Leave ............................................................................................................. 39 
Pregnancy Disability Leave (5 or more employees) ................................................................... 39 
Organ and Bone Marrow Donor Leave ....................................................................................... 41 
Jury Duty & Witness Leave ......................................................................................................... 41 
Victim of Crime Leave ................................................................................................................. 42 
Compassionate Leave/Bereavement .......................................................................................... 42 
Paid Sick Leave .......................................................................................................................... 42 
Military Leave .............................................................................................................................. 44 
Military Spouse Leave................................................................................................................. 44 
Time Off for Voting ...................................................................................................................... 44 
School Activities .......................................................................................................................... 44 
Holidays ...................................................................................................................................... 45 
Floating Holidays ........................................................................................................................ 46 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 3 of 73 

Vacation ...................................................................................................................................... 46 
Volunteer Policy .......................................................................................................................... 49 

Information & Office Security ..................................................................................................... 50 
Building Access ........................................................................................................................... 51 
Security ....................................................................................................................................... 51 
Fire Safety ................................................................................................................................... 52 
Theft ............................................................................................................................................ 52 
Health & Safety ........................................................................................................................... 52 
Ergonomics ................................................................................................................................. 53 
Employees Who Are Required to Drive ...................................................................................... 53 
Housekeeping ............................................................................................................................. 54 
Customer Relations .................................................................................................................... 54 
Budget Control ............................................................................................................................ 55 
Expenses .................................................................................................................................... 55 
Injury & Illness Reporting ............................................................................................................ 56 
Confidentiality ............................................................................................................................. 57 
Open Door Policy ........................................................................................................................ 57 
Nondisclosure or Use of Trade Secrets ...................................................................................... 59 
Computer Software (Unauthorized Copying) .............................................................................. 59 
Network Security ......................................................................................................................... 60 
Employer Property ...................................................................................................................... 60 
Employee Property ..................................................................................................................... 61 
Electronic and Social Media Policy ............................................................................................. 61 
Solicitation & Distribution of Literature ........................................................................................ 64 
Dress Code & Other Personal Standards ................................................................................... 65 
Conflicts of Interest ..................................................................................................................... 66 
Other Employment ...................................................................................................................... 66 
Lactation Policy ........................................................................................................................... 66 
Smoke-Free Environment Policy ................................................................................................ 67 
Employment Termination ............................................................................................................ 67 

Confirmation of Receipt .............................................................................................................. 70 
Confirmation of Receipt .............................................................................................................. 71 
Confirmation of Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Prevention Policy ........................ 72 
Confirmation of Electronic and Social Media Policy ................................................................... 73 DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 4 of 73 

 

Strategic Direction 2020 

_______________________________________ 
  

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 5 of 73 

Our Vision 

A vibrant and prosperous San Luis Obispo County, fueled by a collaborative and flourishing 
tourism industry. 

Our Mission 

Inspire travel and foster our unique experiences to create life-long ambassadors and economic 
growth for San Luis Obispo County. 

Our Values 

Future Focused: Delivering today with an eye on tomorrow 
Collaboration: Our partnerships inform and support economic success 

Drive: We bring enthusiasm to our initiatives and a focus on results 

Stewardship: We are mindful of our resources and the SLO CAL brand 

Our Reputation 

Strategic: “They plan and execute.” 

Connector: “They bring people together.” 

Creative: “They innovate and think differently.” 

Inspiring: “They show us what’s possible.” 

Essential: “We need them in order to succeed.” 

Our Position 

In order to best support the tourism economy in San Luis Obispo County, Visit SLO CAL 

provides: 

• High-quality and high-impact marketing initiatives scaled to reach key regional, national

and global targets

• A long-term, collaborative, and holistic approach that enables success for each tourism

district and the County

• Strategic research and sharing of vital tourism knowledge to all of its stakeholders,

partners and communities

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 6 of 73 

Strategic Imperatives 

 

Strategic Imperative #1: Optimize our Organizational Capacity 

Objectives: 

• Increased employee engagement and satisfaction scores 

• Ratio of administrative cost to economic impact 

Initiatives: 

• Align our organizational structure with our strategic plan 

• Establish a continuous learning program for the Visit SLO CAL Team 

• Evaluate and develop the tools, systems and technologies we need to succeed 

Strategic Imperative #2: Establish Brand Clarity and Increased Awareness 

Through United Efforts 

Objectives: 

• Bi-annual growth of awareness in targeted visitor categories 

• Bi-annual growth of awareness in targeted markets 

• Bi-annual growth of awareness in targeted segments 

Initiatives: 

• Establish a unifying and emotionally resonant San Luis Obispo County brand 

• Produce and share data-driven strategic insights 

• Inspire and activate tourism ambassadors 

Strategic Imperative #3: Build and expand strategic partnerships 
 
Objectives: 

• Balanced inventory of partnerships 

• Inbound partnership opportunities 

• Earned Partnership Value (EPV) 

Initiatives: 

• Develop a system for annual partnership planning 

• Align resources to manage partnerships 

• Identify, develop, and activate relationships 

• Work with our partners to identify and reduce duplication of efforts 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 7 of 73 

Strategic Imperative #4: Advocate for the Development of Critical Tourism 
Infrastructure 
 
Objectives: 

• Increased visitor volume 

• Increased international visitor volume 

• Draft of Tourism Infrastructure Master Plan completed  

• Increased total air service 

Initiatives: 

• Develop long-term Tourism Infrastructure Master Plan 

• Enable access to San Luis Obispo County via increased transportation options 

• Initiate feasibility plan for conference center 

• Advocate and educate to support international tourism readiness 

Strategic Imperative #5: Demonstrate Value to Our Stakeholders, Partners 
and Communities 
 
Objectives: 
 

• Year-over-year growth in total stakeholder participation at Visit SLO CAL 
events/meetings 

• Increased stakeholder satisfaction scores 

• Year-over-year growth in local media coverage 

• Deliver on objectives as stated in annual marketing plan 

• Community engagement with countywide tourism  

Initiatives: 

• Develop an engaged and high-functioning tourism culture for San Luis Obispo County  

• Create an impactful annual marketing plan and timeline 

• Develop and execute a local communication strategy 

• Develop a plan for advocacy on behalf of stakeholders 

 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 8 of 73 

Employment Policies and Practices 

_______________________________________ 
  

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 9 of 73 

Introductory Statement 
 

Welcome! Visit SLO CAL is a small, but mighty team of destination marketing and 

management professionals who work with, and on behalf of, our community, our 

stakeholders and our lodging investors to promote San Luis Obispo County, California 

(SLO CAL) to travelers from around the world. As the sole countywide non-profit 

destination marketing and management organization (DMMO) for SLO CAL, our mission 

is to “inspire travel and foster our unique experiences to create life-long ambassadors 

and economic growth for SLO CAL”. Our goal is to work with strategic partners, our 

stakeholders and our lodging investors to build the SLO CAL brand through a data-

driven, efficient and dynamic marketing and sales programs. Built on research with a 

strategy of continuous improvement, this program aims to establish SLO CAL as a 

favorite West Coast destination that is known for its signature slower pace of life and 

wide variety of incredible, immersive guest experiences. 

 

As an employee of San Luis Obispo County Conference and Visitors Bureau dba Visit 

SLO CAL (“Visit SLO CAL” or the “Company”), you are an important member of a team 

effort. We hope that you will find your position with Visit SLO CAL rewarding, challenging 

and productive. 

Because our success depends upon the dedication of our employees, we are highly 

selective in choosing new members of our team. We look to you and the other 

employees to contribute to the success of the Company. 

This employee handbook is intended to explain the terms and conditions of employment 

of all full- and part-time employees and supervisors. Written employment contracts 

between Visit SLO CAL and some individuals may supersede some of the provisions of 

this handbook. 

This handbook summarizes the policies and practices in effect at the time of publication. 

This handbook supersedes all previously issued handbooks and any policy or benefit 

statements or memoranda that are inconsistent with the policies described here. Your 

supervisor or manager will be happy to answer any questions you may have. 

 

Right to Revise 
 

Visit SLO CAL reserves the right to revise, modify, delete, or add to any and all policies, 

procedures, work rules, or benefits stated in this handbook or in any other document, 

except for the policy of at-will employment. However, any such changes must be in 

writing and must be signed by the President & CEO of Visit SLO CAL. 

Any written changes to this handbook will be distributed via a digital or physical copy to 

all employees so that employees will be aware of the new policies or procedures. No 

oral statements or representations can in any way alter the provisions of this handbook. 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 10 of 73 

This handbook sets forth the entire agreement between you and Visit SLO CAL as to the 

duration of employment and the circumstances under which employment may be 

terminated. Nothing in this employee handbook or in any other personnel document, 

including benefit plan descriptions, creates or is intended to create a promise or 

representation of continued employment for any employee. 

At-Will Employment Status 

Visit SLO CAL personnel are employed on an at-will basis. Employment at-will means 

that the employment relationship may be terminated, with or without cause and with or 

without advance notice at any time by the employee or the Company. Nothing in this 

handbook shall limit the right to terminate at-will employment. No manager, supervisor, 

or employee of Visit SLO CAL has any authority to enter into an agreement for 

employment for any specified period of time or to make an agreement for employment 

on other than at-will terms. Only the President and CEO of Visit SLO CAL has the 

authority to make any such agreement, which is binding only if it is in writing. In the 

absence of the President and CEO, hiring may become the responsibility of the Board of 

Directors. 

Nothing in this at-will statement is intended to interfere with an employee's rights to 

communicate or work with others toward altering the terms and conditions of his or her 

employment. 

Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Prevention 

Visit SLO CAL is an equal opportunity employer. Visit SLO CAL is committed to providing a 

work environment free of harassment, discrimination, retaliation, and disrespectful or other 

unprofessional conduct based on sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding or 

related medical conditions), race, religion (including religious dress and grooming practices), 

color, gender (including gender identity and gender expression), national origin (including 

language use restrictions and possession of a driver's license issued under Vehicle Code 

section 12801.9), ancestry, physical or mental disability, medical condition, genetic 

information, marital status, registered domestic partner status, age, sexual orientation, 

military and veteran status or any other basis protected by federal, state or local law or 

ordinance or regulation. It also prohibits discrimination, harassment, disrespectful or 

unprofessional conduct based on the perception that anyone has any of those 

characteristics, or is associated with a person who has or is perceived as having any of 

those characteristics. 

In addition, Visit SLO CAL prohibits retaliation against individuals who raise complaints of 

discrimination or harassment or who participate in workplace investigations. 

All such conduct violates Company policy. 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 11 of 73 

Harassment Prevention 

Visit SLO CAL’s policy prohibiting harassment applies to all persons involved in the operation 

of the Company. Visit SLO CAL prohibits harassment, disrespectful or unprofessional 

conduct by any employee of the Company, including supervisors, managers and co-workers. 

Visit SLO CAL's anti-harassment policy also applies to vendors, customers, independent 

contractors, interns, volunteers, persons providing services pursuant to a contract and other 

persons with whom you come into contact while working. 

Prohibited harassment, disrespectful or unprofessional conduct includes, but is not limited to, 

the following behavior: 

• Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory jokes or comments, slurs or unwanted sexual

advances, invitations, comments, posts or messages;

• Visual displays such as derogatory and/or sexually-oriented posters, photography, cartoons,

drawings or gestures;

• Physical conduct including assault, unwanted touching, intentionally blocking normal

movement or interfering with work because of sex, race or any other protected basis;

• Threats and demands to submit to sexual requests or sexual advances as a condition of

continued employment, or to avoid some other loss and offers of employment benefits in

return for sexual favors;

• Retaliation for reporting or threatening to report harassment; and

• Communication via electronic media of any type that includes any conduct that is prohibited

by state and/or federal law or by company policy.

Sexual harassment does not need to be motivated by sexual desire to be unlawful or to

violate this policy. For example, hostile acts toward an employee because of his/her gender

can amount to sexual harassment, regardless of whether the treatment is motivated by

sexual desire.

Prohibited harassment is not just sexual harassment but harassment based on any protected

category.

Non-Discrimination

Visit SLO CAL is committed to compliance with all applicable laws providing equal

employment opportunities. This commitment applies to all persons involved in Company

operations. Visit SLO CAL prohibits unlawful discrimination against any job applicant,

employee or intern by any employee of the Company, including supervisors and coworkers.

Pay discrimination between employees of the opposite sex performing substantially similar

work, as defined by the California Fair Pay Act and federal law, is prohibited. Pay

differentials may be valid in certain situations defined by law. Employees will not be retaliated

against for inquiring about or discussing wages. However, Visit SLO CAL is not obligated to

disclose the wages of other employees.

Anti-Retaliation

Visit SLO CAL will not retaliate against you for filing a complaint or participating in any

workplace investigation and will not tolerate or permit retaliation by management, employees

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 12 of 73 

or co-workers. 

Reasonable Accommodation  

Discrimination can also include failing to reasonably accommodate religious practices or 

qualified individuals with disabilities where the accommodation does not pose an undue 

hardship.  

To comply with applicable laws ensuring equal employment opportunities to qualified 

individuals with a disability, the Company will make reasonable accommodations for the 

known physical or mental limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a disability who 

is an applicant or an employee unless undue hardship would result. 

Any job applicant or employee who requires an accommodation in order to perform the 

essential functions of the job should contact a Company representative with day-to-day 

personnel responsibilities and discuss the need for an accommodation. Visit SLO CAL will 

engage in an interactive process with the employee to identify possible accommodations, if 

any, that will help the applicant or employee perform the job. An applicant, employee or 

unpaid intern who requires an accommodation of a religious belief or practice (including 

religious dress and grooming practices, such as religious clothing or hairstyles) should also 

contact a Company representative with day-to-day personnel responsibilities and discuss the 

need for an accommodation. If the accommodation is reasonable and will not impose an 

undue hardship, the Company will make the accommodation. 

Visit SLO CAL will not retaliate against you for requesting a reasonable accommodation and 

will not knowingly tolerate or permit retaliation by management, employees or co-workers. 

Complaint Process  

If you believe that you have been the subject of harassment, discrimination, retaliation or 

other prohibited conduct, bring your complaint to your supervisor or to the President & CEO 

as soon as possible after the incident. You can bring your complaint to any of these 

individuals. If you need assistance with your complaint, or if you prefer to make a complaint 

in person, contact your supervisor or the President & CEO. Please provide all known details 

of the incident or incidents, names of individuals involved and names of any witnesses. It 

would be best to communicate your complaint in writing, but this is not mandatory. 

Visit SLO CAL encourages all individuals to report any incidents of harassment, 

discrimination, retaliation or other prohibited conduct forbidden by this policy immediately so 

that complaints can be quickly and fairly resolved.  

You also should be aware that the Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and 

the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing investigate and prosecute 

complaints of prohibited harassment, discrimination and retaliation in employment. If you 

think you have been harassed or discriminated against or that you have been retaliated 

against for resisting, complaining or participating in an investigation, you may file a complaint 

with the appropriate agency. The nearest office can be found by visiting the agency websites 

at www.dfeh.ca.gov and www.eeoc.gov. 

Supervisors must refer all complaints involving harassment, discrimination, retaliation or 

other prohibited conduct to the President & CEO of Visit SLO CAL so the Company can try to 

DRAFT

http://www.dfeh.ca.gov/
http://www.eeoc.gov/


Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 13 of 73 

resolve the complaint. 

When Visit SLO CAL receives allegations of misconduct, it will immediately undertake a fair, 

timely, thorough and objective investigation of the allegations in accordance with all legal 

requirements. Visit SLO CAL will reach reasonable conclusions based on the evidence 

collected. 

Visit SLO CAL will maintain confidentiality to the extent possible. However, the Company 

cannot promise complete confidentiality. The employer's duty to investigate and take 

corrective action may require the disclosure of information to individuals with a need to know. 

Complaints will be: 

• Responded to in a timely manner

• Kept confidential to the extent possible

• Investigated impartially by qualified personnel in a timely manner

• Documented and tracked for reasonable progress

• Given appropriate options for remedial action and resolution

• Closed in a timely manner

If Visit SLO CAL determines that harassment, discrimination, retaliation or other prohibited

conduct has occurred, appropriate and effective corrective and remedial action will be taken

in accordance with the circumstances involved. Visit SLO CAL also will take appropriate

action to deter future misconduct.

Any employee determined by the Company to be responsible for harassment, discrimination,

retaliation or other prohibited conduct will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to,

and including termination. Employees should also know that if they engage in unlawful

harassment, they can be held personally liable for the misconduct.

Drug and Alcohol Abuse

Visit SLO CAL is concerned about the use of alcohol, marijuana, illegal drugs, or controlled
substances as it affects the workplace. Use of these substances, whether on or off the job
can detract from an employee’s work performance, efficiency, safety, and health, and
therefore seriously impair the employee’s value to the Company. In addition, the use or
possession of these substances on the job constitutes a potential danger to the welfare and
safety of other employees and exposes the Company to the risks of property loss or
damage, or injury to other persons.

Furthermore, the use of prescription drugs and/or over-the-counter drugs also may affect an
employee’s job performance and may seriously impair the employee’s value to the
Company.

The following rules and standards of conduct apply to all employees while on Company
property, at work or working on Company business. The following are strictly prohibited by
Company policy:

• Possession or use of an illegal or controlled substance, alcohol or marijuana, or
being under the influence of, or impaired by, an illegal or controlled substance,
alcohol or marijuana while on the job;

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 14 of 73 

• Driving a Company vehicle while under the influence of a controlled substance,
alcohol or marijuana;

• Using or possessing illegal or controlled substances, alcohol or marijuana while on
the job (including the illegal use of prescription drugs and possessing drug
paraphernalia), and

• Distribution, sale, or purchase of an illegal or controlled substance, alcohol or
marijuana while on the job.

Violation of these rules and standards of conduct will not be tolerated. Visit SLO CAL also 
may bring the matter to the attention of appropriate law enforcement authorities.  

In order to enforce this policy, Visit SLO CAL reserves the right to conduct searches of 
Company property or employees and/or their personal property, and to implement other 
measures necessary to deter and detect abuse of this policy. Visit SLO CAL may conduct 
drug tests on job applicants, if an employee is involved in an accident while on duty and for 
reasonable suspicion. The Company will pay the full cost of any testing that it has requested 
of an applicant or employee, including the reasonable cost of any transportation to and from 
the designated testing facility. Violation of this policy or failure to cooperate fully with any 
request to test may result in immediate disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

An employee’s conviction on a charge of illegal sale or possession of any controlled 
substance while off Company property will not be tolerated because such conduct, even 
though off duty, reflects adversely on Visit SLO CAL. In addition, the Company must keep 
people who sell or possess controlled substances off Company premises in order to keep the 
controlled substances themselves off the premises. 

Any employee who is using prescription or over-the-counter drugs that may impair the 
employee’s ability to safely perform the job, or affect the safety or well-being of others, must 
notify a supervisor of such use immediately before starting or resuming work. A post-
accident drug test may be required for all work-related injuries in which there is a reasonable 
basis for concluding that drug use could have contributed to the incident, if a citation is given 
to the employee for a work-related motor vehicle accident or any involved person requires 
treatment away from the accident scene. An employee in such an accident is required to 
report it as soon as possible to his or her supervisor.   

Although the state has legalized marijuana for medicinal purposes, the company is not 
required to allow the medicinal use of marijuana in the workplace. Use is strictly prohibited on 
company property and may result in discipline, up to and including immediate discharge. 

Visit SLO CAL will encourage and reasonably accommodate employees with alcohol or drug 
dependencies to seek treatment and/or rehabilitation. Employees desiring such assistance 
should request a treatment or rehabilitation leave. The Company is not obligated, however, 
to continue to employ any person whose performance of essential job duties is impaired 
because of drug or alcohol use, nor is the Company obligated to re-employ any person who 
has participated in treatment and/or rehabilitation if that person’s job performance remains 
impaired as a result of dependency. Additionally, employees who are given the opportunity to 
seek treatment and/or rehabilitation, but fail to successfully overcome their dependency or 
problem, will not automatically be given a second opportunity to seek treatment and/or 
rehabilitation. This policy on treatment and rehabilitation is not intended to affect the 
Company’s treatment of employees who violate the regulations described previously. Rather, 
rehabilitation is an option for an employee who acknowledges a chemical dependency and 
voluntarily seeks treatment to end that dependency. 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 15 of 73 

 

Workplace Conduct 

_______________________________________ 

 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 16 of 73 

Standards of Conduct 

Employees are expected to conduct themselves in a manner that furthers Visit SLO 

CAL’s objectives. That conduct includes, but is not limited to: 

• Being respectful to and of fellow team members and others

• Being accountable for your actions and commitments

• Granting permission to your fellow team members to hold you accountable both

individually and corporately

• Using common sense in planning and decision making

• Asking questions in advance of decisions when unclear of appropriate action

• Taking ownership and responsibility for your areas and actions, regardless of the

conduct of others

• Efficently and effectively using one’s work time

• Prioritizing efforts and tasks for completion that will achieve the greatest result for

the business, require the highest sense of urgency and are in line with Strategic

Direction 2020

All employees are urged to become familiar with these rules and standards of conduct. 

In addition, employees are expected to follow the rules and standards faithfully in doing 

their jobs and conducting business on behalf of Visit SLO CAL. Please note that any 

employee who deviates from these rules and standards will be subject to disciplinary 

action. This list of prohibited conduct is illustrative only; other types of conduct that 

threaten security, personal safety, employee welfare and Visit SLO CAL operations also 

may be prohibited and will result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

While not intended to list all forms of behavior that are considered unacceptable in the 

workplace, the following are examples of rule infractions or misconduct that may result in 

disciplinary action.  

• Falsifying employment records, employment information, or other Company

records;

• Inefficient or careless performance of job responsibilities or inability to perform

job duties satisfactorily;

• Recording the work time of another employee or allowing any other employee to

record your work time, or falsifying any time card, either your own or another

employee’s;

• Theft and deliberate or careless damage or destruction of any Company

property, or the property of any employee or customer;

• Removing or borrowing Company property without prior authorization;

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 17 of 73 

• Unauthorized use or misuse of Company equipment, time, materials, or facilities; 

• Sowing discord among fellow team members and others; 

• Publicly complaining about workloads, duties, your supervisor, management or 

the organization on Company time; 

• Starting or participating in rumors or backbiting on Company time or on Company 

premises; 

• Provoking a fight or fighting during working hours or on Company property; 

• Participating in horseplay or practical jokes on Company time or on Company 

premises; 

• Carrying firearms or any other dangerous weapons on Company premises at any 

time; 

• Engaging in criminal conduct, whether or not related to job performance; 

• Causing, creating, or participating in a disruption of any kind during working 

hours on Company property; 

• Insubordination, including, but not limited to, failure or refusal to obey the orders 

or instructions of a supervisor or member of management, or the use of abusive 

or threatening language toward a supervisor or member of management; 

• Using abusive, threatening or intimidating language at any time on Company 

premises; 

• Failing to notify a supervisor when unable to report to work;  

• Unreported absence of three consecutive scheduled workdays. Absences 

protected by state or federal law do not count as violations of this policy; 

• Failing to obtain permission to leave work for any reason during normal working 

hours; 

• Failing to observe working schedules, including rest and lunch periods; 

• Failing to provide a physician’s certificate when requested or required to do so; 

• Sleeping or malingering on the job; 

• Making or accepting personal telephone calls, including cell phone calls, of more 

than three minutes in duration during working hours, except in cases of 

emergency or extreme circumstances; 

• Working overtime without authorization or refusing to work assigned overtime; 

• Violation of dress standards; 

• Violating any safety, health, security or Company policy, rule, procedure or 

violation of the Company’s drug and alcohol policy; 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 18 of 73 

• Committing a fraudulent act or a breach of trust under any circumstances;

• Committing of or involvement in any act of unlawful harassment of another

individual; and

• Failing to promptly report work-related injury or illness.

These rules apply to any and all interactions with customers, fellow employees or 

anyone else associated with the workplace. 

Disciplinary Action Policy 

Disciplinary actions may entail verbal, written and final warnings, and suspension and 

termination. All of these actions may not be followed in all instances. Visit SLO CAL 

reserves the right to exercise discretion in discipline. Prior warning is not a requirement 

for termination. If you are disciplined in writing, copies of your warnings are placed in 

your personnel file.  

Visit SLO CAL reserves the right to take any disciplinary action the Company considers 

appropriate, including termination, at any time. In addition to those situations discussed 

elsewhere in this handbook, listed below are some examples where immediate 

termination could result. This list is general in nature and is not intended to be all-

inclusive: 

• Discourtesy to a customer, member, partner, constituent, contractor, provider

or general public resulting in a complaint or loss of good will

• Refusal or failure to follow directions from management

• Breach of confidentiality relating to employer, employee, customer, member,

partner, constituent, contractor or provider information

• Altering, damaging or destroying Company property records, or another

employee's property

• Dishonesty

• Providing false or misleading information to any Company representative or

on any Company records, including the employment application, benefit

forms, time cards, expense reimbursement forms or similar records.

• Fighting or engaging in disorderly conduct on the Company's or a customer,

member, partner or constituent, or provider's premises.

• Violations of any Company's employment policies including, but not limited to,

confidentiality, security, solicitation, conflict of interest and code of conduct

• Conduct or performance issues of a serious nature

• Failure of a drug or alcohol test

This disciplinary action policy does not alter the Company's policy of at-will employment. 

Either you or Visit SLO CAL remain free to terminate the employment relationship at any 

time, with or without reason or advance notice.  

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 19 of 73 

 

Workplace Violence 

 

Visit SLO CAL is committed to providing a workplace that is free from threats or acts of 

violence. In keeping with this commitment, Visit SLO CAL’s policy is to have “zero 

tolerance” for any actual or threatened violence against employees, customers, visitors 

or any other persons who are either on Visit SLO CAL’s premises or have contact with 

Visit SLO CAL employees in the course and scope of the Visit SLO CAL employee’s job 

duties.  

Compliance with this anti-violence policy is an essential condition of employment. It 

would be a violation of this policy for any person to engage in or contribute to violent 

behavior, threaten others with violence, or engage in any potentially threatening, harmful 

or criminal behavior that may negatively affect the safety or productivity of our 

workplace. Even those made in apparent jest will be taken seriously. Any employee who 

violates any aspect of this policy may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including 

immediate termination of employment.  

Possession of non-work related weapons on Visit SLO CAL premises and at Visit SLO 

CAL-sponsored events shall constitute a threat of violence. 

It is every employee’s responsibility to assist in establishing and maintaining a violence-

free work environment. In order to help Visit SLO CAL provide a safe and secure 

environment for all employees, customers and visitors, every verbal or physical threat 

must be treated seriously. Therefore, each employee is expected and encouraged to 

report any incident which may be threatening to you or your co-workers or any event 

which you reasonably believe is threatening or violent.  

If you are aware of any potentially threatening, harmful or criminal behavior that may 

negatively affect the safety or productivity of our workplace, you must immediately report 

it to the President & CEO. If you feel that danger is imminent or that there is an 

immediate risk to the safety of any person, do not hesitate to dial 9-1-1 for police, fire or 

ambulance assistance. 

A threat includes, but is not limited to, any indication of intent to harm a person or 

damage Company property. Threats may be direct or indirect, and they may be 

communicated verbally or nonverbally. The following are examples of threats and acts 

that shall be considered violent – this list is in no way all-inclusive: 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 20 of 73 

Example Type of 

Threat 

Saying, “Do you want to see your next birthday?” Indirect 

Writing, “Employees who kill their supervisors have the right idea.” Indirect 

Saying, “I’m going to punch your lights out.” Direct 

Making a hitting motion or obscene gesture Nonverbal 

Displaying weapons Extreme 

Stalking or otherwise forcing undue attention on someone, whether 

romantic or hostile 

Extreme 

Taking actions likely to cause bodily harm or property damage Acts of 

violence 

 

Workplace Bullying 

 
Visit SLO CAL is committed to providing a safe and healthy work environment for all 

employees. As such, the Company prohibits bullying of any kind and will deal with 

complaints accordingly. This policy applies to employees while working, at work 

functions and while traveling on business.  

 

Bullying is defined as unwelcome or unreasonable behavior that demeans, intimidates or 

humiliates an individual or group of individuals.  

 

Bullying can be: 

 

• An isolated incident or persistent incidents 

• Carried out by a group or an individual 

• Either direct or indirect 

• Verbal or physical 

 

Some examples of bullying include: 

 

• Abusive or offensive language 

• Unwelcome behavior 

• Unreasonable insults or criticism 

• Teasing and/or spreading rumors 

• Trivializing of work or achievements 

• Exclusion or isolation 

 

Bullying can have devastating results. If you witness bullying or suspect bullying is taking 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 21 of 73 

place, report it to your supervisor and/or to the President & CEO immediately. All 

suspected incidents of bullying will be thoroughly investigated and disciplinary measures 

will be taken accordingly.  

  

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 22 of 73 

 

General Practices 

_______________________________________ 

 

  

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 23 of 73 

 

 

According to Visit SLO CAL Board of Directors, the President & CEO has the final 

authority for hiring personnel required to conduct the business of Visit SLO CAL. That 

authority is exercised in consultation and in concert with Visit SLO CAL managers and 

directors, who have the authority to make effective recommendations in hiring decisions. 

In the absence of the President & CEO, hiring may become the responsibility of the 

Board of Directors. 

 

Introductory Period 
 

For all employees hired by Visit SLO CAL, the first 90 days of employment are 

considered to be an introductory period. During this time, you will learn your 

responsibilities, get acquainted with fellow employees and determine whether or not you 

are happy with your job. Your supervisor will closely monitor your performance. 

During the first 90 days of employment, the employee is encouraged and expected to 

ask questions concerning his or her job responsibilities to assure they understand the 

expectations of the role as they may change at any time during your employment. Visit 

SLO CAL may choose to extend your introductory period as necessary. You will be 

notified if your introductory period is extended. From time to time, you may be asked to 

work on special projects or to assist with other work necessary or important to the 

operations of your department or Visit SLO CAL. Your cooperation and assistance in 

performing such additional work is expected.  

Your performance will be reviewed at the conclusion of your introductory period. A wage 

increase should not be expected at that time nor does the completion of your 

introductory period entitle you to remain employed by Visit SLO CAL for any definite 

period of time. Visit SLO CAL reserves the right, at any time, for any reason, with or 

without notice, to alter or change job responsibilities, reassign or transfer job positions, 

or assign additional job responsibilities.  

 

Employee Classification 
 

Employees are classified as either exempt or non-exempt for pay administration 

purposes, as determined by the federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).  

 

The definitions of the workers classification categories can be summarized as follows:  
 

Exempt - Management, supervisory, professional, sales or administrative employees 

whose positions meet FLSA standards, are exempt from overtime pay requirements. 

Exempt employees are all employees who are classified by Visit SLO CAL as exempt 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 24 of 73 

from the overtime provisions in accordance with applicable laws. While exempt 

employees are expected to adhere to regular and predictable work schedules to ensure 

effective work-flow, the number of hours actually worked in a given week may vary. 

Exempt employees are paid on a salaried basis that does not vary with the number of 

hours actually worked; exempt employees neither lose pay nor are charged vacation or 

sick time for such absences of less than a full day. As for absences other than vacation 

or sickness (such as jury duty, military leave, disciplinary suspensions, etc.), the salary 

of exempt employees will not be subject to deduction for absences of less than full, 

workweek increments. Exempt employees are not eligible for overtime pay.  

Non-exempt - Employees whose positions do not meet the FLSA exemption standards 

are paid overtime. Non-exempt employees include all employees who are covered by 

the overtime provisions of applicable laws. Employees in this category are entitled to 

premium pay for overtime hours in accordance with applicable law for work in excess of 

eight (8) hours in a day and/or forty (40) hours in a work week. Employees classified as 

non-exempt generally work in non-supervisory, non-professional or non-administrative 

capacities including, but not limited to, clerical and secretarial workers. Overtime work, 

however, is prohibited without specific manager authorization.  

 

In addition, each employee's status is defined as one of the following: 

 

Full-time - Employees who work at least 30 hours per week are considered to be full-

time. Such full-time employees are eligible for benefits after applicable requirements for 

length of service have been met.  

 

Part-time - Employees who work less than 30 hours per week are considered to be part-

time. Employees who work on a temporary project basis, will receive all legally 

mandated benefits (such as workers' compensation and Social Security benefits), but 

are ineligible for other benefit programs.  

 

Temporary - Temporary employees are those engaged to work either part-time or full-

time on Visit SLO CAL's payroll, but have been hired with the understanding that their 

employment will be terminated no later than upon their completion of a specific 

assignment or project. The employment status of temporary employees will not be 

changed due to an extension of employment in excess of that originally planned. Such 

employees may be either "exempt" or "non-exempt" but are not eligible for Visit SLO 

CAL benefits except as mandated by law. Visit SLO CAL interns are classified as 

temporary employees.  

 

Independent Contractors - Consultants, freelancers or independent contractors are not 

employees of Visit SLO CAL. The distinction between employees and independent 

contractors is important because employees may be entitled to participate in the 

Company's benefit programs, while independent contractors are not. In addition, Visit 

SLO CAL is not required to withhold income taxes, withhold and pay Social Security and 

Medicare taxes or pay unemployment tax on payments made to an independent 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 25 of 73 

contractor.  

 

Attendance & Standard Working Hours 

 
As an employee of Visit SLO CAL, you are expected to be punctual and regular in 

attendance. Any tardiness or absence causes problems for your fellow employees and 

your supervisor. When you are absent, your assigned work must be performed by 

others.  

Employees are expected to report to work as scheduled, on time, and prepared to start 

work. Employees also are expected to remain at work for their entire work schedule, 

except for meal periods or when required to leave on authorized Company business. 

Late arrivals, early departures or other unanticipated and unapproved absences from 

scheduled hours are disruptive and must be avoided. 

If you are unable to report for work on any particular day, you must provide reasonable 

advance notice to your supervisor before the time you are scheduled to begin working 

for that day. You must inform your supervisor of the expected duration of any absence. If 

you fail to provide reasonable advance notice before your scheduled time to begin work 

and do not arrive in time for your assigned shift, you will be considered tardy for that day. 

If the circumstances for your tardiness or absence were unforeseen, inform your 

supervisor as soon as practicable of the reason for the tardiness or absenteeism. 

Excessive absenteeism or tardiness, providing false information or abuse of leave laws 

will not be tolerated. Generally, if you fail to report for work without any notification to 

your supervisor and your absence continues for a period of three days, Visit SLO CAL 

will consider that you have voluntarily abandoned or quit your employment. 

Absences protected by local, state and federal law do not count as a violation of 

the punctuality and attendance policy. Paid sick time protected under California 

law does not count as a violation of this policy. 

 

Time Card Regulations 
 

Visit SLO CAL requires that each non-exempt employee maintain a time card of his or 

her hours within the Bamboo HR platform. While exempt employees do not fill out a time 

card, they must note sick time, paid time off and other paid absences via the Bamboo 

HR platform to ensure proper calculation of hours. For non-exempt employees, the time 

card will also be used to ensure that paychecks are correct. All non-exempt employees 

are required to accurately record their hours worked each day. You will be informed on 

your first day how to use the time tracking module of Bamboo HR.  

 

For non-exempt employees, your time record is your bill to Visit SLO CAL for services 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 26 of 73 

rendered and is a legal document. To be sure you are paid in full, record your time “In” at 

the beginning of the day, your time “Out” and “In” for lunch, and “Out” again at the 

completion of the day. Do not record “In” or “Out” for rest periods, since these are on 

Visit SLO CAL-paid time. You are responsible for recording all overtime worked, and 

reporting all missed breaks. It is your responsibility to record your time in and out for 

every shift you work (and all meal periods and other unpaid absences). You may not 

record more or less hours than you have actually worked. Employees are not allowed to 

work “off the clock”. Any work performed before or after a regularly scheduled shift must 

be approved in advance by your supervisor. If you perform any “off the clock” work; 

please report the work to your supervisor. Working “off the clock” for any reason is a 

serious violation of Visit SLO CAL policy.  

If you are leaving the premises at any time other than your normal lunch break or stop 

time, before you leave you must clearly inform your supervisor of your departure and you 

must record your time as “Out.” You are responsible for recording all overtime worked. 

Remember to record all time worked, even if it is during hours that should have been 

non-work time.  

Unless overtime work has been authorized by your supervisor in advance, employees 

may not begin work more than six minutes before their scheduled starting time, nor 

continue working more than six minutes after their scheduled stop time. The beginning 

and end of each meal period or any other unpaid break must be recorded the same way. 

All arrivals and departures must be recorded as they occur, with the exact time recorded. 

The time on the time card will be rounded to the nearest quarter of an hour for payroll 

purposes.  

It is important to remember that an employee cannot work through a meal break for any 

reason, even if it is to make up for coming in late or leaving early. If you need to adjust 

your schedule for any reason, discuss it with your supervisor or the President & CEO. 

Failing to take a required meal break is not an option.  

The basis for each absence must be appropriately identified by you on your time record 

on your Bamboo HR portal; i.e., vacation, sick time, jury duty, unpaid absence, etc. 

Indicating the basis for your absence does not necessarily mean that it is excused or will 

be paid; all absences will be excused and/or paid according to Visit SLO CAL's policies 

and practices.  

It is absolutely mandatory that a very accurate record of your time worked be recorded. 

False entries will not be tolerated. Under no circumstances may an employee record 

another person’s time or make any notations on another employee’s time record. Each 

employee is only permitted to handle his or her own time record.  

All time records must be approved at the completion of each pay period. Any 

handwritten marks or changes on the timecard must be initialed by a supervisor, and the 

controller must be notified immediately. All timesheets MUST be approved by the 1st or 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 27 of 73 

the 16th, depending on the cycle, to ensure proper recording of hours worked. Your 

signature verifies that you personally recorded all of the time shown and that the hours 

reported are complete and accurate.  

 

Meal and Rest Policies 
 

All non-exempt employees are entitled to rest break periods during their workday. If you 

are a non-exempt employee, you will be paid for all such break periods, and you will not 

clock out. You are required to remain on the work premises during your rest break(s). 

You are expected to return to work promptly at the end of any rest break. 

You will be authorized and permitted one (1) 10-minute net rest break for every four (4) 

hours you work (or major fraction thereof, which is defined as any amount of time over 

two [2] hours). A rest break need not be authorized for employees whose total daily work 

time is less than three and one half (3.5) hours.   

If you work a shift from three and one-half (3.5) to six (6) hours in length you will be 

entitled to one (1) ten-minute rest break. If you work more than six (6) hours and up to 

10 hours, you will be entitled to two (2) ten-minute rest breaks. If you work more than 10 

hours and up to 14 hours, you will be entitled to three (3) ten-minute rest breaks.   

You are authorized and permitted to take a rest break in the middle of each four-hour 

work period. There may be practical considerations that make this general timing 

infeasible and that require Visit SLO CAL to deviate from this general rule. You will be 

informed if there are practical considerations that make this timing infeasible. 

All non-exempt employees will be provided an uninterrupted unpaid meal period of at 

least 30 minutes if you work more than five (5) hours in a workday. You must clock out 

for your meal period. You will be permitted a reasonable opportunity to take this meal 

period, and you will be relieved of all duty. During your meal period, you are free to come 

and go as you please and are free to leave the premises. You are expected to return to 

work promptly at the end of any meal period.  

If your total work period for the day is more than five hours per day but not more than six 

hours, you may waive the meal period. This cannot be done without the mutual consent 

of you and your supervisor. You must discuss any such waiver with your supervisor in 

advance. The waiver must be in writing.  

If you work more than 10 hours in a day, you will be provided a second, unpaid meal 

period of at least 30 minutes. Again, you must clock out for your meal period. You will be 

permitted a reasonable opportunity to take this meal period, and you will be relieved of 

all duty. There will be no control over your activities during your meal period. During your 

meal period, you are free to leave the premises and are free to come and go as you 

please. You are expected to return to work promptly at the end of any meal period.  

You must clock out for any meal period and record the start and end of the meal period.  

Employees are not allowed to work “off the clock.” All work time must be accurately 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 28 of 73 

reported on your time record. If for any reason you are not provided a meal period in 

accordance with our policy, or if you are in any way discouraged or impeded from taking 

your meal period or from taking the full amount of time allotted to you, please 

immediately notify your supervisor. 

 

Overtime Pay 
 

Employees may be required to work overtime as necessary. Only actual hours worked in 

a given workday or workweek can apply in calculating overtime. Visit SLO CAL will 

attempt to distribute overtime evenly and accommodate individual schedules. All 

overtime work must be previously authorized by a supervisor. Visit SLO CAL provides 

compensation for all overtime hours worked by non-exempt employees in accordance 

with state and federal law as follows: 

• All hours worked in excess of eight hours in one workday or 40 hours in one 

workweek will be treated as overtime. A workday begins at 12:01 a.m. and ends 

at midnight 24 hours later. Workweeks begin each Sunday at 12:01 a.m.; 

• Compensation for hours in excess of 40 for the workweek, or in excess of eight 

and not more than 12 for the workday, and for the first eight hours on the seventh 

consecutive day of work in one workweek, shall be paid at a rate one and one-

half times the employee's regular rate of pay; 

• Compensation for hours in excess of 12 in one workday and in excess of eight on 

the seventh consecutive workday in a workweek shall be paid at double the 

regular rate of pay; and 

• Exempt employees may have to work hours beyond their normal schedules as 

work demands require. No overtime compensation will be paid to exempt 

employees. 

 

Pay for Mandatory Meetings/Training 
 

Visit SLO CAL will pay non-exempt employees for their attendance at meetings, 

lectures, and training programs under the following conditions: 

• Attendance is mandatory; 

• The meeting, course, or lecture is directly related to the employee’s job; and 

• The employee who is required to attend such meetings, lectures, or training 

programs will be notified of the necessity for such attendance by his or her 

supervisor; 

• The employee will be paid at the then applicable minimum wage for time spent at 

meetings, lectures, and training programs if the employee does not perform any 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 29 of 73 

productive work during such attendance; 

• Employees who do perform productive work during attendance at meetings, 

lectures or training programs will be compensated at their regular rate of pay; 

and 

• Any hours in excess of eight (8) in a day or forty (40) in a week will be paid at the 

appropriate overtime rate, at the hourly rate in effect at the time the overtime 

work is being performed. 

 

Continuous Learning Program 
 

Some employees may need to attend training programs, seminars, conferences, 

lectures, meetings, or other outside activities for the benefit of Visit SLO CAL or the 

individual employees. Attendance at such activities, whether required by Visit SLO CAL 

or requested by individual employees, requires the written approval of the employee’s 

supervisor. To obtain approval, any employee wishing to attend an activity must submit a 

written request detailing all relevant information, including date, hours, location, cost, 

expenses, and the nature, purpose, and justification for attendance, on their Continuous 

Learning Program form, which is submitted for approval by their supervisor. Attendance 

at any such event is subject to the following policies on reimbursement and 

compensation. Employees receive this form to fill out and submit during the Annual 

Performance Evaluation process. The form is approved by their supervisor once the 

review process is complete and goals have been finalized. Note that all requests must 

line up with the goals noted in their Annual Performance Evaluation document.  

For attendance at events required or authorized by Visit SLO CAL, customary and 

reasonable expenses will be reimbursed upon submission of proper receipts. Acceptable 

expenses generally include registration fees, materials, meals, transportation, out-of-

market lodging and parking. Reimbursement policies regarding these expenses should 

follow Visit SLO CAL’s Travel & Expense Policy, be in-line with approved budgets and 

be discussed and agreed to with your supervisor or the President & CEO in advance. 

Employee attendance at authorized outside activities will be considered hours worked 

for non-exempt employees and will be compensated in accordance with normal payroll 

practices. 

This policy does not apply to an employee’s voluntary attendance, outside of normal 

working hours, at formal or informal educational sessions, even if such sessions 

generally may lead to improved job performance. While Visit SLO CAL generally 

encourages all employees to improve their knowledge, job skills, and promotional 

qualifications, such activities do not qualify for reimbursement or compensation under 

this policy unless prior written approval is obtained as described previously. 

 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 30 of 73 

Pay Periods & Check Distributions 
 

For those not receiving automatic deposit, paychecks are normally available on payday 

by 4:30 p.m. at the Visit SLO CAL office. If you observe an error on your check, please 

report it immediately to your supervisor. 

Paydays are scheduled on the 5th (fifth) and 20th (twentieth) of the month, or the last 

workday before the 5th (fifth), and 20th (twentieth) for the semi-monthly pay periods 

ending on the 15th (fifteenth) day of the month and the 30th (thirtieth), respectively. If a 

regular payday falls on a weekend or holiday, employees will be paid on the previous 

workday. Time cards must be filled out no later than 12:00 p.m. on the 1st (first) and 16th 

(sixteenth). If the submittal dates fall on a weekend or holiday, employees must ensure 

their hours are filled out the previous work day. 

If an employee is absent on the date of paycheck distribution, his or her check will be 

held until he or she returns.  

Paychecks will only be released to the individual whose name appears on the check, or 

to an individual who the employee has designated and approved through written 

consent. 

Visit SLO CAL will not pay employees for reporting under the following circumstances: 

Interruptions of work because of the failure of any public utilities, or the 

interruptions of work because of natural causes or other circumstances beyond 

our power to control. 

All non-exempt employees are required to use Time Tracking on their Bamboo HR 

platform to record time worked for all payroll purposes. Employees must record their own 

times at the start and at the end of each work period, including before and after the meal 

period.  

 

Automatic Deposit 

 

Visit SLO CAL offers automatic payroll deposit for employees at their designated bank. 

You may begin and stop automatic payroll deposit at any time. To begin automatic 

payroll deposit, you must complete a form (available on Bamboo HR), e-sign it at least 

10 days before the pay period for which you would like the service to begin, and email 

Finance@SLOCAL.com to ensure the controller is aware of this request. You should 

carefully monitor your payroll deposit statements for the first two pay periods after the 

service begins. 

To stop automatic payroll deposit, complete the form available from the finance 

department and return it to accounting at least 10 days before the pay period for which 

you would like the service to end. You will receive a regular payroll check on the first pay 

DRAFT

mailto:Finance@SLOCAL.com


Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 31 of 73 

period after the receipt of the form, provided it is received no later than 10 days before 

the end of the pay period. 

If an employee chooses direct deposit of his or her paycheck, he or she will still receive 

access to an electronic copy of their paystub each pay period. If you observe an error on 

your check, please report it immediately to your supervisor.  

 

Personnel Records Policy 
 

Visit SLO CAL is required by law to keep current all employees’ names and addresses, 

phone numbers, person to contact in case of emergency and change in name or number 

of dependents. Employees are responsible for notifying Visit SLO CAL in the event of 

any changes in name, address, telephone number, marital status, number of 

dependents, or level of benefits from other sources, as soon as possible. 

You have a right to inspect or receive a copy of the personnel records that Visit SLO 

CAL maintains relating to your performance or to any grievance concerning you. Certain 

documents may be excluded or redacted from your personnel file by law, and there are 

legal limitations on the number of requests that can be made. 

 

Any request to inspect or copy personnel records must be made in writing to the 

President & CEO. You can obtain a form for making such a written request from the 

President & CEO. Visit SLO CAL will restrict disclosure of your personnel file to 

authorized individuals within the Company. You may designate a representative to 

conduct the inspection of the records or receive a copy of the records. However, any 

designated representative must be authorized by you in writing to inspect or receive a 

copy of the records. Visit SLO CAL may take reasonable steps to verify the identity of 

any representative you have designated in writing to inspect or receive a copy of your 

personnel records.  

 

The personnel records may be made available to you either at the place where you work 

or at a mutually agreeable location (with no loss of compensation for going to that 

location to inspect or copy the records). The records will be made available no later than 

30 calendar days from the date Visit SLO CAL receives your written request to inspect or 

copy your personnel records (unless you/your representative and Visit SLO CAL 

mutually agree in writing to a date beyond 30 calendar days but no later than 35 

calendar days from receipt of the written request). 

 

Any request for information contained in personnel files must be directed to the 

President & CEO. Only the President & CEO is authorized to release information about 

current or former employees. Disclosure of personnel information to outside sources will 

be limited. Visit SLO CAL will cooperate with requests from authorized law enforcement 

or local, state, or federal agencies conducting official investigations and as otherwise 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 32 of 73 

legally required. This policy (or any other Visit SLO CAL policy) is not to be construed as 

prohibiting employees from disclosing information about themselves or from discussing 

their wages, hours or other terms or conditions of their employment with their coworkers 

or their representatives. 

 

Performance Evaluations 
 

Each employee will receive periodic performance reviews conducted by his or her 

supervisor in line with Visit SLO CAL’s Annual Performance Evaluation Process. 

Performance evaluations are tied directly back to Strategic Direction 2020. These 

reviews are also specific to established KPIs. Your first performance evaluation will take 

place after the completion of your introductory period. Subsequent performance 

evaluations will be conducted annually, and will be based on Visit SLO CAL’s FY 

calendar. The frequency of performance evaluations may vary depending upon length of 

service, job position, past performance, changes in job duties, or recurring performance 

problems. You will be asked to complete a written, prior year self-review detailing the 

outcomes of the expectations and the year’s established S.M.A.R.T. (Specific, 

Measurable, Agreed Upon, Realistic, Time-Based) goals/objectives. The department 

team leader will then conduct a manager review where the S.M.A.R.T. goals/objectives 

for the upcoming year will be finalized. Utilizing S.M.A.R.T. goals/objectives will allow the 

organization to tie performance reviews to Strategic Direction 2020 and to focus on 

measured outcomes and quality of services, rather than outputs and quantity. The goal 

of this evaluation process is to improve Visit SLO CAL’s organizational leadership and 

annual strategic focus, while enhancing accountability to other team members and to the 

stakeholders we serve. All team member annual performance reviews will be held in 

August regardless of the team member’s start date. Performance evaluations review the 

following six areas: Future Focused, Collaboration, Drive, Stewardship, Integrity, and 

Passion. The performance evaluations are intended to make you aware of your 

progress, areas for improvement, and objectives or goals for future work performance as 

also discussed during regularly scheduled one-to-ones. Favorable performance 

evaluations do not guarantee increases in salary or promotions. Salary increases and 

promotions are solely within the discretion of Visit SLO CAL and depend upon many 

factors in addition to performance. After the review, you will be required to sign the 

evaluation report simply to acknowledge that it has been presented to you, that you have 

discussed it with your supervisor, and that you are aware of its contents. 

Employee wage reviews and adjustments are based on job content and responsibility, 

and are given at the discretion of the President & CEO. (The President & CEO is 

reviewed and compensated at the discretion of the Executive Committee.) Wages are 

generally reviewed annually; separate from an employee’s performance evaluation, 

although there may be exceptions to this policy. Wage adjustments, if given, are 

determined by reviewing the employee’s job classification, the employee’s prior job 

performance evaluation(s), and Visit SLO CAL’s budgetary restrictions.  

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 33 of 73 

  

 

Employee References 
 

All requests for references must be directed to the person with day-to-day 

personnel responsibilities, in this case, the President & CEO. No other manager, 

supervisor, or employee is authorized to release references for current or former 

employees. 

By policy, Visit SLO CAL discloses only the dates of employment and the title of the last 

position held by former employees. If you authorize the disclosure in writing, Visit SLO 

CAL also will inform prospective employers of the amount of salary or wage you last 

earned. 

 

Benefits Overview 
 

Each benefit program offered by Visit SLO CAL has its own eligibility requirements that 

must be satisfied before a particular employee may participate in such program. For 

most programs, there is a written plan document or insurance contract that sets forth the 

details of the program and the particular eligibility requirements. Visit SLO CAL reserves 

the right to change, modify or delete any benefits at its discretion. To the extent that 

State or federal law may require Visit SLO CAL to alter the interpretation or 

implementation of any Visit SLO CAL benefits, such laws will be followed.  

While the Company will attempt to explain the basic elements of such programs in this 

Employee Handbook and elsewhere, the terms of the written plan documents or 

insurance contracts will control the administration of any benefits under such programs. 

To the extent that any statements or assurances are made in any form (including in this 

Employee Handbook) that may contradict the provisions of the plan documents or 

insurance contracts, such statements or assurances are to be disregarded; the 

provisions set forth in the written plan documents or insurance contracts will control the 

Company’s obligations and determine the outcome of any situation. 

 

Visit SLO CAL is committed to providing the following benefits for eligible employees. 

Benefit eligibility may be dependent upon your employee classification (full-time versus 

part-time, for example) and on length of continuous employment at Visit SLO CAL. 

 

Upon becoming eligible for certain employee benefit plans, you will receive Summary 

Plan Descriptions which describe the benefits in greater detail. For information regarding 

employee benefits and to answer any questions, you may contact the President & CEO. 

 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 34 of 73 

Visit SLO CAL reserves the right to modify, amend or terminate benefits and to modify or 

amend benefit eligibility requirements at any time and for any reason, subject to any 

legal restrictions. 

 

Visit SLO CAL offers the following employee benefits: 

 

• Health Insurance 

• Dental Insurance 

• Vision Insurance 

• Short-Term and Long-Term Disability Insurance 

• 401k Retirement Plan 

 

Employment Taxes & Voluntary Deductions 
 

 

Insurance: Visit SLO CAL rewards you not only with your basic pay, but also with a 

benefit program. Our benefit program is available to regular full-time employees on the 

first of the month after 30 days of active employment. In the event of an increase in 

insurance premium rates, all employees may be required to contribute to the cost of 

increased premiums to retain coverage. 

At the time of hire or change to eligible status, Visit SLO CAL will give you a benefits 

packet with complete descriptions of the various options available to you and ask you to 

complete enrollment forms. Your share, if any, of the cost would be handled by 

convenient payroll deduction. 

Disability Insurance: Each employee contributes to the State of California to provide 

disability insurance pursuant to the California Unemployment Insurance Code. Disability 

insurance (SDI) is payable when you cannot work because of illness or injury not caused 

by employment at the Company. Specific rules and regulations governing disability are 

available from the President & CEO. 

Paid Family Leave Insurance: Employees may be eligible for Paid Family Leave (PFL) 

wage replacement benefits, which are funded through payroll deductions and 

coordinated through the Employment Development Department. PFL provides partial 

pay for up to six weeks when an employee needs to take leave from work to care for a 

parent, parent-in-law, child, spouse, registered domestic partner, grandparent, 

grandchild, or sibling who is seriously ill, or for a working parent who wants time to bond 

with his or her newborn, foster child or newly adopted child. The PFL program does not 

provide employees with a right to a leave of absence; it is limited to a state-mandated 

wage replacement benefit. 

Unemployment Compensation: The Company contributes thousands of dollars each 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 35 of 73 

year to the California Unemployment Insurance Fund on behalf of its employees. The 

right to receive unemployment insurance and the amount of the benefit is determined by 

the State Employment Development Department. Visit SLO CAL has the right to protest 

any claim where we believe an employee acted without good cause or was terminated 

for misconduct.   

Social Security: Social Security is an important part of every employee's retirement 

benefit. The Company pays a matching contribution to each employee's Social Security 

taxes. 

Workers' Compensation: The Company participates in a comprehensive Workers' 

Compensation Insurance program at no cost to you. The policy covers you in case of 

occupational injury or illness. If you sustain work-related injuries, you must inform your 

supervisor immediately. No matter how minor an on-the-job injury may appear, it is 

important that it be reported immediately. This will enable you to qualify for coverage as 

quickly as possible. Visit SLO CAL provides medical treatment for work-related injuries 

through a medical provider network, which the Company has chosen to provide medical 

care to injured employees because of their experience in treating work-related injuries. 

Retirement Plan: The Company provides a 401(k) retirement plan for eligible 

employees in order to assist in planning for their retirement. To be eligible for the 

retirement plan, employees must be employed for one full year of 1000 hours and over, 

and must be over the age of 18. For information regarding eligibility, contributions, 

benefits and tax status, contact the President & CEO. All eligible participants will receive 

a summary plan description. 

  

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 36 of 73 

Time Away From Work 

_______________________________________ 

 
  

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 37 of 73 

Personal Leave of Absense 

 

Visit SLO CAL may grant leaves of absence to employees in certain circumstances. 

Requests for any leave must be made in writing and presented to the President & CEO 

as far in advance as possible, the request must contain the anticipated length of 

absence with dates and reason for the request. If the request is granted, you must keep 

in touch with your supervisor or the President & CEO during your leave, and give prompt 

notice of any change in your anticipated return date.  

Workloads, scheduling, previously scheduled vacations, the needs of Visit SLO CAL and 

all relevant facts will be considered in the determination of an approval or non-approval 

of a request for leave of absence. Upon approval, management will advise you of the 

costs of any benefit plan contributions to be made during that period. Holidays, vacation 

accrual and medical insurance are not provided for employees on a personal leave of 

absence. You must make arrangements prior to beginning your leave, for payment of 

such amounts in order to keep programs current. If your leave expires and you fail to 

return to work without contacting your supervisor or the President & CEO, Visit SLO CAL 

will assume that you do not plan to return and that you have terminated your 

employment. Upon return from a leave of absence, you will resume all aspects of your 

employment status that existed prior to the start of your leave. 

Visit SLO CAL does not continue to pay premiums for health insurance coverage for 

employees on personal leaves of absence. However, you may self-pay the premiums 

under the provisions of COBRA. The President & CEO can provide you with additional 

information. 

 

Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault or Stalking Leave 

and Accommodation 
 

Employees who are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking are eligible 

for unpaid leave. While the leave is generally unpaid, employees can use their paid sick 

time under California's Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act for the purposes 

described below. 

You may request leave if you are involved in a judicial action, such as obtaining 

restraining orders, or appearing in court to obtain relief to ensure your health, safety, or 

welfare, or that of your child. Please provide reasonable advance notice of the need for 

leave unless advance notice is not feasible. Contact the President & CEO for additional 

information. 

Employees who are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking and need a 

reasonable accommodation for their safety at work should contact the President & CEO, 

and discuss the need for an accommodation. If you are requesting such a reasonable 

accommodation, you will need to submit a written statement signed by you, or by an 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 38 of 73 

individual acting on your behalf, certifying that the accommodation is for the purpose of 

your safety at work. 

For reasonable accommodation requests, Visit SLO CAL will also require certification 

demonstrating that you are the victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking. 

Visit SLO CAL may request recertification every six months from the date of the previous 

certification. You should notify Visit SLO CAL if an approved accommodation is no 

longer needed.  

Visit SLO CAL will engage in an interactive process with the employee to identify 

possible accommodations, if any, that are effective and will make reasonable 

accommodations unless an undue hardship will result. 

Visit SLO CAL will, to the extent allowed by law, maintain the confidentiality of an 

employee requesting leave or accommodation under these provisions. 

 

Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault or Stalking Leave for 

Treatment 
 

Employees who are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking are eligible 

for unpaid leave. While the leave is generally unpaid, employees can use their paid sick 

time under California's Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act for the purposes 

described below. 

You may request leave for any of the following purposes: 

• To seek medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence, sexual assault or 

stalking; 

• To obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program or rape crisis center as a 

result of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking; 

• To obtain psychological counseling related to experiencing domestic violence, sexual 

assault or stalking; 

• To participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future 

domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking, including temporary or permanent 

relocation. 

Please provide reasonable advance notice of the need for leave unless advance notice 

is not feasible. Contact the President & CEO for additional information. 

Visit SLO CAL will, to the extent allowed by law, maintain the confidentiality of an 

employee requesting leave under this provision. 

 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 39 of 73 

General/Personal Leave 
 

All regular full-time and regular part-time employees are eligible for Personal Leave. 

Leave must be requested in writing and, if granted, is at the employer's sole discretion 

because of other compelling circumstances including non-FMLA eligible family or 

medical leave. If granted a Personal Leave, you are required to use all accrued paid time 

off before the unpaid portion of the leave begins. 

General leaves are normally limited to a maximum of 30 days. Extensions may be 

granted with approval under extraordinary circumstances. If you are granted Personal 

Leave, efforts will be made to hold your position open for the period of the approved 

leave. However, the employer cannot guarantee that you will be returned to your position 

either before or upon expiration of the leave. If your position is unavailable, your 

employment will terminate as of the last day of your Personal Leave of Absence. 

 

Pregnancy Disability Leave (5 or more employees) 
 

If you are pregnant, have a related medical condition, or are recovering from childbirth, 

please review this policy. Any employee planning to take pregnancy disability leave 

should advise the personnel department as early as possible. The individual should 

make an appointment with the President & CEO to discuss the following conditions: 

• Duration of pregnancy disability leave will be determined by the advice of the 

employee's physician, but employees disabled by pregnancy may take up to four 

months of leave per pregnancy (the working days you normally would work in one-third 

of a year or 17 1/3 weeks). Part-time employees are entitled to leave on a pro rata 

basis. The four months of leave includes any period of time for actual disability caused 

by the employee's pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical condition. This includes 

leave for severe morning sickness and for prenatal care, doctor-ordered bed rest, as 

well as other reasons. Your healthcare provider determines how much time you need 

for your disability. 

• Visit SLO CAL will also reasonably accommodate medical needs related to pregnancy, 

childbirth, or related conditions or temporarily transfer you to a less strenuous or 

hazardous position (where one is available) or duties if medically needed because of 

your pregnancy.  

• Employees who need to take pregnancy disability must inform Visit SLO CAL when a 

leave is expected to begin and how long it will likely last. If the need for a leave, 

reasonable accommodation, or transfer is foreseeable (such as the expected birth of a 

child or a planned medical treatment for yourself), employees must provide at least 30 

days advance notice before the pregnancy disability leave or transfer is to begin. 

Employees must consult with their supervisor regarding the scheduling of any planned 

medical treatment or supervision in order to minimize disruption to the operations of the 

DRAFT

http://hr.blr.com/topics.aspx?topic=98
http://hr.blr.com/topics.aspx?topic=127
http://hr.blr.com/topics.aspx?topic=127
http://hr.blr.com/topics.aspx?topic=127
http://hr.blr.com/topics.aspx?topic=127


Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 40 of 73 

Company. Any such scheduling is subject to the approval of the employee's health care 

provider;  

• For emergencies or events that are unforeseeable, we need you to notify the Company, 

at least verbally, as soon as practical after you learn of the need for the leave.  

• Failure to comply with these notice requirements may result in delay of leave, 

reasonable accommodation, or transfer;  

• Pregnancy leave usually begins when ordered by the employee's physician. The 

employee must provide Visit SLO CAL with a written certification from a health care 

provider for need of PDL, reasonable accommodation or transfer. The certification must 

be returned no later than 15 calendar days after it is requested by the Company. Failure 

to do so may, in some circumstances, delay PDL leave, reasonable accommodation or 

transfer. Please see the personnel department for a medical certification form to give to 

your health provider.  

• Leave returns will be allowed only when the employee's physician sends a release;  

• An employee will be allowed to use accrued sick time (if otherwise eligible to take the 

time) during a pregnancy disability leave. An employee will be allowed to use accrued 

vacation or personal time (if otherwise eligible to take the time) during a pregnancy 

disability leave; and  

• Leave does not need to be taken in one continuous period of time and may be taken 

intermittently, as needed. Leave may be taken in increments of one hour. 

If intermittent leave or leave on a reduced work schedule is medically advisable, the 

employee may, in some instances, be required to transfer temporarily to an available 

alternative position that meets the employee's needs. The alternative position need not 

consist of equivalent duties, but must have the equivalent rate of pay and benefits. The 

employee must be qualified for the position. The position must better accommodate the 

employee's leave requirements than her regular job. Transfer to an alternative position 

can include altering an existing job to better accommodate the employee's need for 

intermittent leave or a reduced work schedule. 

Upon submission of a medical certification that an employee is able to return to work 

from a pregnancy disability leave, an employee will be reinstated to her same position 

held at the time the leave began or, in certain instances, to a comparable position, if 

available. There are limited exceptions to this policy. An employee returning from a 

pregnancy disability leave has no greater right to reinstatement than if the employee had 

been continuously employed. 

Employees on pregnancy disability leave will be allowed to continue to participate in 

group health insurance coverage for up to a maximum of four months of disability leave 

(if such insurance was provided before the leave was taken) at the level and under the 

conditions that coverage would have been provided if the employee had continued in 

employment continuously for the duration of the leave. In some instances, an employer 

can recover from an employee premiums paid to maintain health coverage if the 

employee fails to return following pregnancy disability leave. PDL may impact other 

benefits or a seniority date. Please contact the operations department for more 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 41 of 73 

information. 

 

Organ and Bone Marrow Donor Leave 

 

Employees who are donors for organ or bone marrow may take paid time off as follows: 

Employees may take up to 30 business days of leave in any one-year period for the 

purpose of donating an organ to another person. The one-year period is calculated from 

the date the employee begins his/her leave. 

Employees may take up to 5 business days of leave in any one-year period for the 

purpose of donating bone marrow to another person. The one-year period is calculated 

from the date the employee's leave begins. 

During the leave for organ/bone marrow donors, Visit SLO CAL will continue to provide 

and pay for any group health plan benefits the employee was enrolled in prior to the 

leave of absence. 

Leave taken for the purpose of organ or bone marrow donation is not leave for the 

purpose of family medical leave under state law, The California Family Rights Act. 

Employees who wish to take a leave of absence to donate bone marrow or an organ will 

be required to provide written verification of the need for leave, including confirmation 

that the employee is an organ or bone marrow donor and that there is a medical 

necessity for the donation of the organ or bone marrow. 

 

Jury Duty & Witness Leave 
 

Visit SLO CAL encourages employees to serve on jury duty and as a witness when 

called. Non-exempt employees who have completed their introductory periods will 

receive full pay while serving up to three days of jury duty. Exempt employees will 

receive full salary unless they are absent for a full week and perform no work. You 

should notify the President & CEO of the need for time off for jury duty or witness leave 

as soon as a notice or summons from the court is received. You may be requested to 

provide written verification from the court clerk of performance of jury service. If work 

time remains after any day of jury selection or jury or witness duty, you will be expected 

to return to work for the remainder of your work schedule. 

All employee benefits the employee is enrolled in will continue while the employee is on 

jury duty and/or witness leave. However, should jury duty leave exceed one (1) month, 

the employee will be required to continue payment of any required contributions for 

insured benefits and retirement benefits during the jury duty leave if they want to keep 

them in effect. 

You may retain any mileage allowance or other fee paid by the court for jury services. 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 42 of 73 

 

Victim of Crime Leave 

 

An employee who is themselves a victim or who is the family member of a victim of 

certain serious crimes may take time off from work to attend judicial proceedings related 

to the crime or to attend proceedings involving rights of the victim. 

A family member of a crime victim may be eligible to take this leave if he/she is the crime 

victim’s spouse, parent, child, or sibling. Other family members may able be covered 

depending on the purpose of the leave. 

The absence from work must be in order to attend judicial proceedings or proceedings 

involving rights of the victim. Only certain crimes are covered. You must provide 

reasonable advance notice of your need for leave, and documentation related to the 

proceeding may be required. If advance notice is not possible, you must provide 

appropriate documentation within a reasonable time after the absence. 

Any absence from work to attend judicial proceedings or proceedings involving victim 

rights will be unpaid, unless you choose to take paid time off.  

For more information regarding this leave (including whether you are covered, when and 

what type of documentation is required, and which type of paid time off can be used), 

please contact the President & CEO. 

 

Compassionate Leave/Bereavement 
 

Visit SLO CAL grants leave of absence to employees in the event of the death of the 

employee’s current spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, legal guardian, 

brother, sister, grandparent, or grandchild; or mother-, father-, sister-, brother-, son-, or 

daughter-in-law. An employee with such a death in the family may take up to 3 

consecutive scheduled workdays off with pay with the approval of the Company. The 

President & CEO may approve additional unpaid time off. 

 

Paid Sick Leave 

Vacation Policy Plus a Separate Sick Leave Policy 

Beginning July 1, 2015, California law provides for mandatory paid sick leave under the 

Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act (the "Act"). All employees who have worked in 

California for 30 or more days within a year from the start of their employment are 

eligible for protected paid sick time under the Act. Employees cannot be discriminated or 

retaliated against for requesting or using paid sick time. 

In addition to the amount you will accrue as vacation time, Visit SLO CAL will provide 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 43 of 73 

you three days or 24 hours of paid sick time at the beginning of each 12 month period, 

as set forth below. Visit SLO CAL does not pay employees for unused paid sick leave. 

If you have any questions about paid sick leave, please contact the President & CEO. 

Visit SLO CAL will provide eligible employees with three days or 24 hours of paid sick 

time on their first day of employment with Visit SLO CAL. However, employees are not 

eligible to take their paid sick time until the first of the month after the 30th day of 

employment with the Company. 

Unused paid sick time will not carry over from year to year. However, Visit SLO CAL will 

place three days or 24 hours of paid sick time into your leave bank each year on your 

anniversary date. Employees will be able to access all three days or 24 hours of paid 

sick time at the beginning of each 12-month period. 

Qualifying Reasons for Paid Sick Leave 

Paid sick time under the Act can be used for any of the following reasons: 

• Diagnosis, care or treatment of an existing health condition for an employee or 

covered family member, as defined below. 

• Preventive care for an employee or an employee's covered family member. 

• For certain specified purposes when the employee is a victim of domestic violence, 

sexual assault or stalking. 

For purposes of paid sick leave, a covered family member includes: 

• A child: Defined as a biological, foster or adopted child; a stepchild; or a legal ward, 

regardless of the age or dependency status of the child. A "child" also may be 

someone for whom you have accepted the duties and responsibilities of raising, even 

if he or she is not your legal child. 

• A parent: Defined as a biological, foster or adoptive parent; a stepparent; or a legal 

guardian of an employee or the employee's spouse or registered domestic partner. A 

"parent" may also be someone who accepted the duties and responsibilities of 

raising you when you were a minor child, even if he or she is not your legal parent. 

• A spouse. 

• A registered domestic partner. 

• A grandparent. 

• A grandchild. 

• A sibling. 

Use of Paid Sick Time and Notification 

An employee can use paid sick time for any of the above reasons protected by the Act. If 

the need for paid sick time is foreseeable, employees must provide advance oral or 

written notification to their supervisor or the President & CEO. If the need for paid sick 

time is not foreseeable, employees shall provide notice to their supervisor or the 

President & CEO as soon as practicable. 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 44 of 73 

An employee can also decide to use vacation time for any of the above reasons. 

However, if an employee wants the time off to be protected paid sick time, the employee 

should designate the time off accordingly and provide the above-described notice. 

Otherwise, Visit SLO CAL will treat the time off as vacation time and not protected paid 

sick time. Leave may be taken in increments of one hour. 

 

Military Leave 
 

Employees who wish to serve in the military or National Guard and take military leave 

should contact the President & CEO for information about their rights before and after 

such leave. You are entitled to reinstatement upon completion of military service, 

provided you return or apply for reinstatement within the time allowed by law. 

 

Military Spouse Leave 

 

Employees who work more than 20 hours per week and have a spouse in the Armed 

Forces, National Guard or Reserves who have been deployed during a period of military 

conflict are eligible for up to 10 unpaid days off when their spouse is on leave from (not 

returning from) military deployment. 

Employees must request this leave in writing to the President & CEO within two 

business days of receiving official notice that their spouse will be on leave. Employees 

requesting this leave are required to attach to the leave request written documentation 

certifying the spouse will be on leave from deployment. 

 

Time Off for Voting 

 

If an employee does not have sufficient time outside of working hours to vote in an 

official state-sanctioned election, the employee may take off enough working time to 

vote. Such time off shall be taken at the beginning or the end of the regular working shift, 

whichever allows for more free time, and the time taken off shall be combined with the 

voting time available outside of working hours to a maximum of two hours combined. 

Under these circumstances, an employee will be allowed a maximum of two hours of 

time off during an election day without loss of pay. When possible, an employee 

requesting time off to vote shall give his or her supervisor at least two business days' 

notice. 

 

School Activities 
 

Employees are encouraged to participate in the school or child care activities of their 
child(ren). The absence is subject to all of the following conditions: 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 45 of 73 

• Time off under this policy can only be used by parents, guardians, grandparents, 

stepparents, foster parents or a person who stands in loco parentis to one or more children 

of the age to attend kindergarten through grade 12 or a licensed child care provider; 

• The amount of time off for school or child care activities described below cannot exceed a 

total of 40 hours each year; 

• Covered employees can use the time off to find, enroll or re-enroll a child in a school or 

with a licensed child care provider or to participate in activities of the child's school or 

licensed child care provider. The time off for these purposes cannot exceed eight hours in 

any calendar month. Employees planning to take time off for these purposes must provide 

reasonable advance notice to their supervisor. 

• Covered employees can also use time off to address a "child care provider or school 

emergency" if the employee gives notice to the employer. A child care provider or school 

emergency means that the employee's child cannot remain in a school or with a child care 

provider due to one of the following:  

o The school or child care provider has requested that the child be picked up, or has 

an attendance policy (excluding planned holidays) that prohibits the child from attending 

or requires the child to be picked up from the school or child care provider; 

o Behavioral or discipline problems; 

o Closure or unexpected unavailability of the school or child care provider, excluding 

planned holidays; or 

o A natural disaster, including, but not limited to, fire, earthquake or flood. 

• Employees must provide their supervisor with documentation from the school or licensed 

child care provider verifying that they were engaged in these child-related activities on the 

day and time of the absence;  

• If more than one parent is employed by Visit SLO CAL, the first employee to request such 

leave will receive the time off. Another parent will receive the time off only if the leave is 

approved by his or her supervisor; 

• Employees must use leave [e.g., vacation time] in order to receive compensation for this 

time off; and 

• Employees who do not have paid time off available will take the time off without pay. 

Suspension 

If an employee who is the parent or guardian of a child facing suspension from school is 

summoned to the school to discuss the matter, the employee should alert his or her 

supervisor as soon as possible before leaving work. In agreement with California Labor 

Code Section 230.7, no discriminatory action will be taken against an employee who 

takes time off for this purpose. 

 

Holidays 
 

Visit SLO CAL observes the following ten (10) holidays: 

• New Year’s Day (January 1) 

DRAFT

reception
Highlight



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 46 of 73 

• Martin Luther King Jr Day (3rd Monday in January) 

• Presidents’ Day (3rd Monday in February) 

• Memorial Day (last Monday in May) 

• Independence Day (July 4) 

• Labor Day (1st Monday in September) 

• Veterans Day (November 11) 

• Thanksgiving (4th Thursday in November) 

• Day after Thanksgiving (Friday)  

• Christmas Day (December 25th) 

When a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, it is usually observed on the preceding 

Friday or following Monday. However, Visit SLO CAL may grant another day off in lieu of 

closing. Holiday observance is announced in advance.  

Each non-exempt employee’s eligibility for holiday pay begins after completion of his or 

her 90 day continuous employment introductory period. To be eligible for holiday pay, 

you must be regularly scheduled to work on the day on which the holiday is observed 

and must work your regularly scheduled working days immediately preceding and 

immediately following the holiday, unless an absence on either day is approved in 

advance by your supervisor or the absence is otherwise protected by law. If you are 

required to work on a paid scheduled holiday, you will receive double time. 

 

Floating Holidays 

As part of Visit SLO CAL’s Shared Accountability Plan, employees have the opportunity 

to earn up to two (2) additional floating holidays per year in conjunction with their 

employment anniversary date and their birthday. This component of the Shared 

Accountability Program benefit requires employees to outline their annual professional 

development goals each July in their Continuous Learning Program form submittal, 

receive supervisor approval in August, achieve the annual goals and submit the required 

completion paperwork prior to the end of the fiscal year. Floating Holidays will be 

awarded each September in conjunction with employee annual performance reviews 

and must be used prior to the end of the Fiscal Year in which they were awarded. 

Floating Holidays cannot be carried over to the following year. For more information on 

Visit SLO CAL’s Continuous Learning Program, see p.29. 

 

Vacation 
 

Visit SLO CAL recognizes the value of rest and relaxation and encourages employees to 

use all vested vacation benefits. As a Company, we promote fun, travel experiences and 

DRAFT

reception
Highlight

reception
Highlight



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 47 of 73 

the creation of memories and encourage our employees to partake in the same on a 

regular basis.  

Full-Time Employees 

Upon successful completion of the Introductory Period (three months of employment), 

eligible full-time employees will accrue vacation benefits as follows:   

 

Years of Service Rate of Accrual 

After successful completion of 

Introductory Period through the 

fourth (4th) year of continuous 

employment 

6.67 hours per month for salary 

employees / .0385 hours per hour 

worked for hourly employees (10 

days per calendar year) 

From fifth (5th) through the ninth 

(9th) year of continuous employment 

10 hours per month for salary 

employees / .0577 hours per hour 

worked for hourly employees (15 

days per calendar year)   

After ten (10) years of continuous 

employment  

13.34 hours per month for salary 

employees / .0769 hours per hour 

worked for hourly employees (20 

days per calendar year) 

 

The Company encourages employees to take vacation annually. Vacation time must be 

taken within the year following accrual. Earned vacation time accrues to a maximum of 

1.5 times the annual accrual earned or 15 working days (120 hours) in the second 

through fourth years of employment; 23 working days (184 hours) in the fifth through 

ninth years of employment; and 30 working days (240 hours) in the 10th and following 

years of employment.  

No additional vacation time will be earned until maximum accrued vacation time is used. 

Employees are responsible for tracking their accrued vacation time. 

 

Part-Time & Temporary Employees 

Upon successful completion of the Introductory period, eligible part-time employees will 

accrue vacation benefits at a rate of one (1) hour for every forty (40) hours worked.  

Earned vacation time accrues to an annual maximum of twenty-four (24) hours.   

The maximum accrued vacation benefit that a Part-Time Team Member may have at 

any one time is five (5) days (40 hours). No additional vacation time will be earned until 

maximum accrued vacation time is used. 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 48 of 73 

Temporary employees are not eligible for vacation benefits. 

   

Bamboo HR Portal & Vacation Scheduling and Usage 

Employees can see their accrued vacation time (and calculate their future vacation 

balance) in their Visit SLO CAL Bamboo HR portal. 

Vacation time must be requested and approved in this Portal before it is used. In order to 

plan for absenses, vacation time should be requested at least four weeks in advance of 

your requested vacation dates. Once approved, the controller will be notified during the 

respective pay cycle and will apply your vacation time during that cycle. Visit SLO CAL 

schedules determine permissible vacation periods, which employees may need to defer 

or otherwise adjust accordingly. Vacation shall be scheduled to provide adequate 

coverage of job responsibilities and staffing requirements.  

Vacation time must be used in one hour increments (8 hours = one day). 

If a holiday falls during an employee’s scheduled vacation, the employee will receive 

holiday wages for the day if she/he is eligible for such wages and will not be charged 

vacation benefits for the day. 

An employee whose employment terminates will be paid all remaining accrued vacation 

time. 

 

Required Use of Vacation Time before Unpaid Leave 

You are required to take accrued and unused vacation before taking unpaid leave, or 

having unpaid absences. Family and Medical Leave (under both state and federal law) is 

included in this requirement, unless the absence is pregnancy-related and you are 

receiving wage replacement through a disability benefit plan (regardless of whether the 

plan is employer provided or mandatory under state or federal law, such as state 

disability insurance).  

If you are absent for a reason that qualifies you for Paid Family Leave (PFL) payments, 

you are required to first use any accrued and unused vacation time.  

PFL benefits do not replace all of your usual wages. Your PFL benefits will be 

supplemented with any accrued and unused sick leave (kin care law). If you have no 

sick leave (kin care), or once you exhaust your sick leave, accrued and unused vacation 

time will be used to supplement your PFL benefits. 

Employees who are absent because of their own disability may be eligible for State 

Disability Insurance (SDI) benefits. SDI payments do not begin until after you have been 

absent from work for 7 calendar days. If you have accrued sick leave, sick leave will be 

used for the first 7 days before SDI payments begin, unless you are receiving wage 

replacement through a disability benefit plan (regardless of whether the plan is employer 

provided). If you do not have accrued sick leave, but do have accrued vacation, vacation 

will be substituted for the unpaid absence. 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 49 of 73 

SDI benefits do not replace all of your usual wages. Your SDI benefits will be 

supplemented with any accrued and unused sick leave, unless you are receiving wage 

replacement for a disability benefit plan (regardless of whether the plan is employer 

provided). If you have no sick leave, or once you exhaust your sick leave, accrued and 

vacation time will be used to supplement your SDI benefits. 

 

Volunteer Policy 
 

Full-time paid staff members are encouraged by Visit SLO CAL to volunteer in the 

community. Visit SLO CAL will compensate staff members for up to two (2) hours per 

month of actual volunteer work that is completed during normal Visit SLO CAL business 

hours (8am-5pm). Visit SLO CAL does not provide compensation for commuting time, 

and mileage is not reimbursable. In order to be compensated for the time, the 

community organization must be approved by the President & CEO, and the volunteer 

schedule and hours must be approved in advance. Team members must add their 

volunteer hours to their individual Visit SLO CAL calendar, and share the “meeting” with 

TeamCalendar@SLOCAL.com so that it is noted on the team calendar.  

In order to be compensated, non-exempt/hourly employees will need to “Request “Time 

Off” via Bamboo HR, and select the “Community Service” policy to ensure it is updated 

in their time tracking. Non-exempt/hourly employees must complete their volunteer work 

outside of their lunch break or other break hours, in order to remain in compliance with 

HR laws. Exempt employees do not need to note their volunteer hours in Bamboo HR, 

but must have their requested volunteer hours approved by their supervisor and noted 

on the team calendar.  

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 50 of 73 

Information & Office Security 

_______________________________________ 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 51 of 73 

Building Access 

Certain doors are identified as required to remain unlocked during business hours. 

Employees should be attentive to people passing through those doors for any suspicious 

behavior. All other unattended exterior doors should never be left open, ajar, or 

unlocked; anyone could easily enter undetected. You should never provide anyone with 

any alarm codes or similar information.  

If you see anyone in an unauthorized area unescorted, ask whom they are visiting and if 

they need assistance. Cordially escort the person to their destination or off the premises. 

If the situation seems suspicious, notify the President & CEO immediately. Never 

engage in a confrontation or other risky behavior; nothing is more important than the 

physical safety of any person.  

When leaving after regular business hours, you must check to be sure that all entrances 

are properly locked. You must also activate the security system or, if another employee 

remains on site as you leave, you must confirm that such employee will activate the 

system. You will be assigned a unique four-digit code and trained on arming and 

disarming the security system. Do not share this code with anyone including members of 

the Visit SLO CAL team. If the security system is tripped for any reason, enter your four-

digit code, then “Off,” and repeat. Call the Integrity Security 24-Hour Hotline at 805-

462-9150 to ensure the police have not been called. Visit SLO CAL will provide you

with an override password during your on-boarding. If Integrity Security calls the office to

confirm the alarm has been tripped by you, please provide them with this password.

Leaving after hours without making sure the premises are properly locked and secured 

is a serious matter, and may result in your termination. Please follow the Visit SLO CAL 

Close of Business Checklist procedures (provided during on-boarding) if you are the last 

to leave the office. 

Security 

Visit SLO CAL has developed guidelines to help maintain a secure workplace. Be aware 

of persons loitering for no apparent reason in parking areas, walkways, entrances and 

exits, and service areas. Report any suspicious persons or activities to your supervisor, 

Director or the President & CEO. Secure your desk or office at the end of the day. When 

called away from your work area for an extended length of time, do not leave valuable 

and/or personal articles in or around your workstation that may be accessible. The 

security of facilities as well as the welfare of our employees depends upon the alertness 

and sensitivity of every individual to potential security risks. You should immediately 

notify the President & CEO when unknown persons are acting in a suspicious manner in 

or around the facilities, or when keys, security passes, identification badges or credit 

cards are missing. 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 52 of 73 

Fire Safety 

Every employee must be familiar with the location of all exits and fire extinguishers in 

their general work area.  

All doors should be shut at night, including the doors to individual rooms. Similarly, all 

office equipment, machinery and electrical appliances should be turned off at the end of 

each day or when not in use, unless otherwise specified. Each person is responsible for 

the doors and equipment in his/her own work area; however, any person who sees a 

door open, or equipment, lights or appliances on during inappropriate times should 

correct the situation.  

Theft 

For obvious reasons, Visit SLO CAL maintains a strong policy against theft. In addition 

to monetary theft, theft of any property belonging to Visit SLO CAL, its customers, 

contractors, or employees, will not be tolerated. Visit SLO CAL will not be responsible for 

the lost or stolen personal property of any employee, and employees bring such 

belongings to work at their own risk. Nevertheless, Visit SLO CAL demands honesty of 

its employees; any theft by an employee, regardless of the value involved, may be 

subject to prosecution. In addition to prosecution, the employee will be subject to 

immediate discharge.  

Borrowing of Visit SLO CAL property for personal reasons at any time is contrary to Visit 

SLO CAL policy. Visit SLO CAL property, including office supplies, may not be taken 

from the premises for any reason without authorization from the President & CEO.  

Health & Safety 

All employees are responsible for their own safety, as well as that of others in the 

workplace. To help us maintain a safe workplace, everyone must be safety-conscious at 

all times. You must report all work-related injuries or illnesses to your supervisor or 

President & CEO immediately. In compliance with California law, and to promote the 

concept of a safe workplace, Visit SLO CAL maintains an Injury and Illness Prevention 

Program. The Injury and Illness Prevention Program is available for review by 

employees and/or employee representatives in the President & CEO’s office. 

In compliance with Proposition 65, Visit SLO CAL will inform employees of any known 

exposure to a chemical known to cause cancer or reproductive toxicity. 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 53 of 73 

Ergonomics 

Visit SLO CAL is subject to Cal/OSHA ergonomics standards for minimizing workplace 

repetitive motion injuries. Visit SLO CAL will make necessary adjustments to reduce 

exposure to ergonomic hazards through modifications to equipment and processes and 

employee training. Visit SLO CAL encourages safe and proper work procedures and 

requires all employees to follow safety instructions and guidelines. 

Visit SLO CAL believes that reduction of ergonomic risk is instrumental in maintaining an 

environment of personal safety and well-being, and is essential to our business. We 

intend to provide appropriate resources to create a risk-free environment.  

Employees Who Are Required to Drive 

Some employees may occasionally be required to drive a Visit SLO CAL vehicle or their 

own vehicles on Visit SLO CAL business. Employees are not to drive on Visit SLO CAL 

business unless authorized to do so. Employees driving on Visit SLO CAL business will 

be reimbursed according to the terms outlined in the Travel & Expense Policy and 

Procedures document.  

Regardless of the vehicle driven, the employee must possess a valid driver’s license. 

Employees without a valid driver’s license must not drive any vehicle on Visit SLO CAL 

business, regardless of the purpose or brevity of the drive. Employees who drive their 

own vehicle for Visit SLO CAL must also have current proof of personal liability 

insurance. Any employee who does not meet these minimum requirements will not be 

permitted to drive on Visit SLO CAL business; if driving is an essential function of your 

job, this may result in termination of your employment. No person at Visit SLO CAL has 

the authority to permit anyone to drive in violation of these requirements.  

Any employee driving on Visit SLO CAL business must immediately notify Visit SLO CAL 

of any changes in the status of his or her driver’s license, driving record, or liability 

coverage. Any employee driving on Visit SLO CAL business must also be insurable by 

Visit SLO CAL’s insurance carrier. If driving is an essential function of your job, inability 

to establish your insurability with Visit SLO CAL's carrier may result in termination.  

Employees must always follow safe practices, such as wearing a seat belt, and avoiding 

distractions while driving. All employees must not use cell phones while driving; if you 

must make or take a call while on the road, you are required to pull over to a location 

where you can use the phone safely. The only exception will be if you are using a hands-

free phone device. Also, employees must not engage in “text messaging” or any other 

use of an electronic communications device to write, send or read a text message, 

regardless of the type of device (BlackBerries, iPhones, iPods, pagers, laptops, etc.). 

Even if you are using a phone or other electronic device in a way permitted by this 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 54 of 73 

policy, you still must not allow such use to distract you from your driving. 

Any accident, no matter how slight, while on Visit SLO CAL business must be reported 

immediately to the employee's Director or the President & CEO; this reporting 

requirement is not to be deemed an assumption of liability on the part of Visit SLO CAL 

for all accidents, since this will depend on the individual case. Traffic violations and 

parking tickets are the responsibility of the driver. Employees must not drive on Visit 

SLO CAL business if their judgment or driving ability is in any way impaired.  

Housekeeping 

All employees are expected to keep their work areas clean and organized. People using 

common areas such as kitchen, break area, conference room, collaboration space, uni-

sex restroom and the area in and around the facility are expected to be considerate of 

others and keep the facilities clean and sanitary. Please clean up after yourself and 

dispose of trash properly. 

A bulletin area in the kitchen is used to post required and important documents such as 

federal and state labor rules, employee memos, and other approved Visit SLO CAL 

announcements. Notices are posted from time to time which may affect you personally. 

It is each employee’s responsibility to read all posted notices. Only notices authorized by 

the President & CEO may be posted. 

Customer Relations 

Employees are expected to be polite, courteous, prompt, and attentive to every 

customer. When an employee encounters an uncomfortable situation that he or she 

does not feel capable of handling, the employee’s Director or the President & CEO 

should be called immediately. 

Visit SLO CAL is a service business and all of us must remember that the customer 

always comes first. Our customers ultimately pay all of our wages. Remember, while the 

customer is not always right, the customer is never wrong. 

Customers are to be treated courteously and given proper attention at all times. Never 

regard a customer's question or concern as an interruption or an annoyance. You must 

respond to inquiries from customers, whether in person, by telephone or by email, 

promptly (within 48 business hours) and professionally. 

Never place a telephone caller on hold for an extended period. Direct incoming calls to 

the appropriate person and make sure the call is received. 

Through your conduct, show your desire to assist the customer in obtaining the help he 

or she needs. If you are unable to help a customer, find someone who can. 

All correspondence and documents, whether to customers or others, must be neatly 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 55 of 73 

prepared and error-free. Attention to accuracy and detail in all paperwork demonstrates 

your commitment to those with whom we do business. 

Never argue with a customer. If a problem develops, or if a customer remains 

dissatisfied, ask your Director or the President & CEO to intervene. 

Mistakes will be made, so when they happen, report them. The goal is to try not to make 

the same mistakes twice, and not to ignore mistakes such that small problems become 

large ones. You are expected to notify the person most able to help resolve the mistake 

as soon as possible.  

 

Budget Control 

 

Visit SLO CAL’s operations are geared to anticipated annual receipts and expenditures. 

At the beginning of each fiscal year, careful estimates are made of prospective income. 

At the same time, estimates are made of the funds necessary for the operation of 

programs. From these estimates, an annual budget is prepared and ultimately adopted 

by the Board of Directors, and is re-forecasted half-way through the year. 

In order to stay within the budget limitations, all expenditures must be approved by the 

appropriate Director and all contracts must be signed by the President & CEO before 

any commitment is made. 

The Visit SLO CAL seeks to maintain its credit standing at the very highest level at all 

times. This can be accomplished by prompt payment of bills. Staff members should see 

that all invoices are properly coded, noted for accrual, and approved by the appropriate 

Director and, are delivered promptly to accounting for reconciliation, processing and 

payment. 

 

Expenses 

 

Employees of Visit SLO CAL are required to follow the Visit SLO CAL Travel & Expense 

Policy and Procedures document. All expenses must be ordinary, reasonable, necessary 

and have a valid business purpose. Visit SLO CAL may deny reimbursement of any 

expense not permitted under applicable law or not in compliance with this policy, 

inappropriate or excessive. Employees also should bear in mind that constituents may 

perceive certain expenditures as being either excessive or inappropriate in a review of 

Visit SLO CAL activities. Thus, moderation and discretion should guide decisions to 

incur expenses on Visit SLO CAL’s behalf. If you have a corporate card or need to 

request reimbursement of mileage or expenses, you will be required to submit your 

expense report on a monthly basis by the date specified by Operations.  

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 56 of 73 

 

Injury & Illness Reporting 
 

Visit SLO CAL is committed to establishing and maintaining a comfortable and safe 

working environment for all employees. 

The Company, in accordance with state law, provides insurance coverage for employees 

in case of work-related injury. The workers' compensation benefits provided to injured 

employees may include: 

• Medical care; 

• Cash benefits, tax free, to replace lost wages; and 

• Assistance to help qualified injured employees return to suitable employment. 

To ensure that you receive any workers' compensation benefits to which you may be 

entitled, you will need to: 

• Immediately report any work-related injury to your supervisor; 

• Seek medical treatment and follow-up care if required through the medical 

provider network, MPN, unless we have your pre-designated physician form on 

file; 

• Complete a written Employee's Claim for Workers Compensation Benefits (DWC 

Form 1) and return it to your Director; and 

• Provide the Company with a certification from your health care provider regarding 

the need for workers' compensation disability leave, as well as your eventual 

ability to return to work from the leave. 

 

Employees who have a work-related illness or injury are covered by workers’ 

compensation insurance. However, workers’ compensation benefits usually do not cover 

absences for medical treatment. When you report a work-related illness or injury, you will 

be sent for medical treatment, if treatment is necessary. You will be paid your regular 

wages for the time you spend seeking initial medical treatment. Any further medical 

treatment will be under the direction of the health care provider. Any absences from work 

for follow-up treatment, physical therapy or other prescribed appointments will not be 

paid as time worked. If you have accrued and unused paid time off options or sick time, 

the additional absences from work may be paid with the use of that time. 

The Company does not pay any insurance premiums for either the employee or the 

employee’s dependents, during a work-related leave of absence. In order to keep the 

insurance in force, it is the employee’s responsibility to pay 100% of the premium. Since 

premiums are normally due by the first day of each month, premiums will be considered 

untimely if received by the employer more than 30 days after this date. Failure to pay 

premiums in a timely manner will result in immediate termination of coverage and a 90-

day waiting period from the date of return for reinstatement of benefits.   

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 57 of 73 

Under most circumstances, upon submission of a medical certification that an employee 

is able to return to work after a workers' compensation leave, the employee under most 

circumstances will be reinstated to his or her same position held at the time the leave 

began, or to an equivalent position, if available. An employee returning from a workers' 

compensation leave has no greater right to reinstatement than if the employee had been 

continuously employed rather than on leave. For example, if the employee on workers' 

compensation leave would have been laid off had he or she not gone on leave, or if the 

employee's position has been eliminated or filled in order to avoid undermining the 

Company's ability to operate safely and efficiently during the leave, and no equivalent or 

comparable positions are available, then the employee would not be entitled to 

reinstatement. 

An employee's return depends on his or her qualifications for any existing openings. If, 

after returning from a workers' compensation disability leave, an employee is unable to 

perform the essential functions of his or her job because of a physical or mental 

disability, the Company's obligations to the employee may include reasonable 

accommodation, as governed by the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

The law requires Visit SLO CAL to notify the workers' compensation insurance company 

of any concerns of false or fraudulent claims. 

Confidentiality 

Each employee is responsible for safeguarding the confidential information 

obtained during employment. 

In the course of your work, you may have access to confidential information regarding 

Visit SLO CAL, its suppliers, its customers, its partners, its constituents, or perhaps even 

fellow employees. You have a responsibility to prevent revealing or divulging any such 

information unless it is necessary for you to do so in the performance of your duties. 

Access to confidential information should be on a “need-to-know” basis and must be 

authorized by your supervisor. Any breach of this policy will not be tolerated and legal 

action may be taken by the Company. 

Open Door Policy 

To a great extent, an employee’s success in his/her new assignment will depend upon 

the goodwill, assistance and support to fellow staff members. All tasks assigned are 

interrelated. Your own job complements the efforts of everyone at Visit SLO CAL. The 

objective of all is to work together to do the best job possible. Please keep in mind that 

an employee will be spending a third of every day among fellow staff members. Respect 

their rights and feelings, and be empathetic. Try to appreciate them as you would want 

to be appreciated. Employees encountering a slow period are expected to offer their 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 58 of 73 

assistance to others when needed. In turn, any employee confronted with an emergency 

assignment can expect cooperation from all other employees.   

Suggestions for improving Visit SLO CAL are always welcome. At some time, you may 

have a complaint, suggestion, or question about your job, your working conditions, or the 

treatment you are receiving. You are responsible for addressing concerns with a 

manager, from complaints to suggestions and observations. Addressing these concerns 

allows Visit SLO CAL to improve and explain practices, processes and decisions. 

Examples of some concerns employees may have: 

• Suggestions for improvement

• Concerns about working conditions

• Issues with co-workers

• Concerns about treatment at work

We recommend that you first discuss concerns with your manager, but the Open Door 

Policy also gives you the option of discussing them with any other manager up to and 

including the President & CEO. All of these parties will be willing to listen to the issue 

and assist in a resolution. 

When a concern is voiced, we will do our best to remedy the situation. If the problem 

persists, you may describe it in writing and present it to the President & CEO, who will 

investigate and provide a solution or explanation. If you need assistance with your 

complaint, or you prefer to make a complaint in person, contact the President & CEO. 

We encourage you to bring the matter to the President & CEO as soon as possible after 

you believe that it has failed to be resolved. 

If the problem is not resolved, you may present the problem in writing to the Board of 

Directors of Visit SLO CAL, who will attempt to reach a final resolution. If you need 

assistance with the written complaint, contact any member of the Board of Directors for 

help. 

This procedure, which we believe is important for both you and Visit SLO CAL, cannot 

guarantee that every problem will be resolved to your satisfaction. However, Visit SLO 

CAL values your observations and wants to foster an environment where all employees 

feel comfortable reporting their concerns. You should feel free to raise issues of concern, 

in good faith, without the fear of retaliation. 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 59 of 73 

Nondisclosure or Use of Trade Secrets 
 

During the term of employment with Visit SLO CAL, employees may have access to and 

become familiar with information of a confidential, proprietary, or secret nature, which is 

not generally known to competitors or the public and which is, or may be, either 

applicable or related to the present or future business of the Company, its research and 

development, or the business of its customers. For example, trade secret information 

includes, but is not limited to, devices, inventions, processes and compilations of 

information, records, specifications, and information concerning customers, partners, 

constituents or vendors. Employees shall not disclose any of the above-mentioned trade 

secrets, directly or indirectly, or use them in any way, either during the term of their 

employment or at any time thereafter, except for the benefit of the Company and as 

required in the course of employment with the Company. The employee agrees that he 

or she will not remove or otherwise transmit confidential, proprietary or secret 

information without express prior written consent of an authorized company 

representative. The above agreement should not be construed as constituting a promise 

of continued employment for at-will employment purposes.   

The employee understands that customer, partner and constituent lists of Visit SLO 

CAL, for which the employee has or will have access to during the employee's 

employment, are trade secrets and shall be solely the property of the employer. The 

company spends a significant amount of time, effort and money in the acquisition, 

development and maintenance of confidential information regarding its customers, 

partners and constituents. 

The employee agrees that he/she will not during his/her employment or for a period of 

one year immediately following termination of his/her employment, either directly or 

indirectly call upon or attempt to solicit or take away any of the Company's customers, 

partners and constituents or business products or services competitive with the 

Company, using protected confidential information from the customer lists. This applies 

to both attempts to take away the Company's customers, partners and constituents 

either for the employee or for any third party. 

 

Computer Software (Unauthorized Copying) 

 

Visit SLO CAL does not condone the illegal duplication of software. Copyright law is 

clear: “it is illegal to make or distribute copies of copyrighted material without 

authorization.” The only exception is the user’s right to make a backup copy for archival 

purposes. Unauthorized duplication of software is a Federal crime, with penalties 

including substantial fines and prison terms. Even the users of unlawful copies suffer 

from their own actions; they receive no documentation, no customer support, and no 

information about product updates.  

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 60 of 73 

Visit SLO CAL licenses software from a variety of sources. It does not own such 

software and the related documentation; unless authorized by the software 

manufacturer, Visit SLO CAL does not have the right to reproduce it. Therefore, 

employees will use software only in accordance with the license agreement. You must 

not take such software home for use on your personal computers. Under no 

circumstances may software be used at Visit SLO CAL in violation of any licensing 

requirements or limitations.  

Employees learning of any misuse of software or documentation shall notify the 

President & CEO; no retribution to the reporting employee will be tolerated. Visit SLO 

CAL employees who make, acquire or use unauthorized copies of computer software 

shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

 

Network Security 

 

Visit SLO CAL does not wish to discourage employees from gathering information via 

the Internet, modem, or on removable media that have been on other computers. 

However, Visit SLO CAL’s network must be protected against any computer viruses that 

might enter from any outside source. For this reason, nothing may be placed onto any 

Visit SLO CAL system before the President & CEO or his/her designee has reviewed it 

and provided specific, advance approval for placing it on Visit SLO CAL’s systems. This 

includes any removable media that you have run on your home computer, even if related 

to Visit SLO CAL work.  

Similarly, employees should take great care to avoid clicking open any “spam” or 

engaging in any other conduct commonly understood to increase the likelihood of a virus 

or other potentially-damaging item getting onto our systems. In general, you should not 

open any email unless you know the sender, are expecting to receive it and know it 

relates to a business purpose. That means you should not open personal emails, even if 

you know the sender. Employees must be mindful of the fact that our systems contain 

highly sensitive information regarding our members, constituents and partners that must 

be carefully protected at all times. All employees are required to comply with all policies 

– whether written or verbal – Visit SLO CAL may establish regarding the use of its 

network and computer systems. Further information is available from the President & 

CEO. 

 

Employer Property 
 

Lockers, furniture, desks, computers, cell phones, data processing equipment/software, 

internet hot-spot boxes, vehicles, and other company-owned items are Visit SLO CAL 

property and must be maintained according to Company rules and regulations. They 

must be kept clean and are to be used only for work-related purposes. Visit SLO CAL 

reserves the right to inspect all Company property including computer, internet, phone 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 61 of 73 

data or messages to ensure compliance with its rules and regulations, without notice to 

the employee and at any time, not necessarily in the employee's presence. Prior 

authorization must be obtained before any Company property may be removed from the 

premises. 

Company voice mail and/or electronic mail (e-mail) including texting, pagers and mobile 

email are to be used for business purposes. Visit SLO CAL reserves the right to monitor 

voice mail messages, e-mail messages, and texts to ensure compliance with this rule, 

without notice to the employee and at any time, not necessarily in the employee's 

presence. Visit SLO CAL may periodically need to assign and/or change “passwords” 

and personal codes. These communication technologies and related storage media and 

databases are to be used only for Company business and they remain the property of 

Visit SLO CAL. Visit SLO CAL reserves the right to keep a record of all passwords and 

codes used and/or may be able to override any such password system. Messages on 

the company voice mail and email systems are subject to the same company policies 

against discrimination and harassment as are any workplace communications. 

Offensive, harassing or discriminatory content in such messages will not be tolerated. 

 

Employee Property 
 

An employee’s personal property, including but not limited to lockers, packages, purses, 

and backpacks, may be inspected upon reasonable suspicion of unauthorized 

possession of Visit SLO CAL property, possession of dangerous weapons or firearms, or 

abuse of the Company’s drug and alcohol policy. 

 

Electronic and Social Media Policy 
 

This policy is intended to protect the Company's computer systems and electronic 

information. 
 

For purposes of these policies, the following definitions apply: “Computers” are defined 

as desktop computers, laptops, handheld devices (including but not limited to smart 

phones, iPads and other electronic tablets or writing devices and cell phones), computer 

software/hardware and servers, and internet hot-spot boxes. 

 

Visit SLO CAL also uses various forms of “electronic communication.” “Electronic 

communications” includes e-mail, text messages, and other messages on telephones, 

cell phones and other handheld devices (such as smart phones, iPads, and other 

electronic tablets or writing devices), fax machines, and online services including the 

Internet. 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 62 of 73 

“Electronic information” is any information created by an employee using computers or 

any means of electronic communication, including, but not limited to, data, messages, 

multimedia data, and files. 

The following general policies apply: 

• Computers and all data transmitted through Visit SLO CAL servers are Company

property owned by the Company for the purpose of conducting Company

business. These items must be maintained according to Visit SLO CAL rules and

regulations. Computers must be kept clean and employees must exercise care to

prevent loss and damage. Prior authorization must be obtained before any

Company property may be removed from the premises.

• All electronic communications also remain the sole property of Visit SLO CAL

and are to be used for Company business. For example, email messages are

considered Company records.

• Electronic information created by an employee using any computer or any means

of electronic communication is also the property of Visit SLO CAL and remains

the property of Visit SLO CAL.

• Information stored in Visit SLO CAL computers and file servers, including,

without limitation, CRM data, customer lists, vendor lists and research data is the

property of the Company and may not be distributed outside the Company in any

form whatsoever without the written permission of the manager.

• Violation of any of the provisions of this policy, whether intentional or not, will

subject Visit SLO CAL employees to disciplinary action, up to and including

termination.

Visit SLO CAL reserves the right to inspect all Company property to ensure compliance 

with its rules and regulations, without notice to the employee and at any time, not 

necessarily in the employee's presence. Visit SLO CAL computers and all electronic 

communications and electronic information are subject to monitoring and no one should 

expect privacy regarding such use. The Company reserves the right to access, review 

and monitor electronic files, information, messages, text messages, e-mail, Internet 

history, browser-based webmail systems and other digital archives and to access, 

review and monitor the use of computers, software, and electronic communications to 

ensure that no misuse or violation of Company policy or any law occurs. E-mail may be 

monitored by the Company and there is no expectation of privacy. Assume that e-mail 

may be accessed, forwarded, read or heard by someone other than the intended 

recipient, even if marked as “private.” 

Employee passwords may be used for purposes of security, but the use of a password 

does not affect the Company's ownership of the electronic information or ability to 

monitor the information. The Company may override an employee's password for any 

reason. 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 63 of 73 

Employees are not permitted to access the electronic communications of other 

employees or third parties unless directed to do so by Visit SLO CAL management. 

All existing Company policies apply to employee use of computers, electronic 

communications, electronic information, and the Internet. This includes policies that deal 

with misuse of Company assets or resources. It is a violation of Visit SLO CAL policy to 

use computers, electronic communications, electronic information, or the Internet, in a 

manner that: is discriminatory harassing or obscene; constitutes copyright or trademark 

infringement; violates software licensing rules; is illegal; or is against Visit SLO CAL 

policy. It is also a violation of policy to use computers, electronic communications, 

electronic information, or the Internet to communicate confidential or sensitive 

information or trade secrets.   

The display of any kind of sexually explicit multimedia content, message, or document 

on any Company computer is a violation of the Company's policy against sexual 

harassment. This description of prohibited usage is not exhaustive and it is within the 

discretion of Visit SLO CAL to determine if there has been a violation of this policy. 

Employees that engage in prohibited use will be subject to discipline and/or immediate 

termination. 

Visit SLO CAL provides computers, electronic communications, electronic information 

and information technology resources, including the Internet, to its employees to help 

them do their job. Generally, these Company resources and property should be used 

only for business-related purposes; however, there are a few exceptions:  

• To send and receive necessary and occasional personal communications;  

• To use the telephone system, cell phones or smart phones for brief and 

necessary personal calls or messages; and  

• To access the Internet for brief personal searches and inquiries during meal 

times or other breaks, provided that employees adhere to all other usage 

policies.  

This policy is not intended to limit the ability of employees to use Company email 

systems to communicate with other employees regarding the terms and conditions of 

their employment, including topics such as wages, job performance, workload, 

supervisors or staffing.  

Any personal usage of Company property must not interfere with the employee's work 

performance, take away from work time, consume supplies, slow other users, slow the 

servers or computer systems, tie up printers or other shared resources, or violate any 

Company policy, including policies against harassment, discrimination and disclosure of 

confidential or trade secret information. All policies relating to monitoring usage of 

Company property apply.  

Visit SLO CAL uses social media in limited circumstances for defined business 

purposes. Social media is a set of Internet tools that aid in the facilitation of interaction 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 64 of 73 

between people online. If you have specific questions about which programs the 

Company deems to be social media, consult with your supervisor.  

Use of Internet-based programs such as Facebook, LinkedIn, and Twitter (this is not 

meant to be an exhaustive list) may be used in furtherance of Company goals. However, 

only authorized individuals are allowed to speak/write in the name of Visit SLO CAL 

using the social media tools of the Company such as Visit SLO CAL, #SLOCAL and 

@VisitSLOC. Your supervisor will authorize you in writing if you can use these Company 

social media tools to perform your job duties. Authorized individuals using the Company 

social media tools shall identify themselves honestly, accurately and completely and 

comply with all Company policies in using this media. 

Your authorization is limited to business purposes and personal use of these Company 

social media tools or programs is prohibited and can result in discipline up to and 

including termination. All policies relating to monitoring usage of Company property 

apply.  

Employees can use their own personal devices to engage in social media during non-

working times, such as breaks and meal periods; however, all other Company policies 

against inappropriate usage, including the Company's zero tolerance policy for 

discrimination, harassment or retaliation in the workplace, and protection of confidential 

and trade secret information apply. 

Visit SLO CAL recognizes that occasional use of the employee's own computers 

(including hand held devices) and electronic communications may occur during working 

hours. The Company allows such occasional personal use as long as the usage does 

not interfere with the employee's work performance, take away from work time or violate 

any Company policy. All other company policies, including the Company's zero tolerance 

policy for discrimination, harassment or retaliation in the workplace apply. Visit SLO CAL 

reserves the right to adjust this policy on a case-by-case basis as it deems appropriate. 

Upon termination of employment,regardless of reason, and during the exit process, 

departing Visit SLO CAL employees are required to delete in front of the appropiate 

manager any business information or Visit SLO CAL data on any personal devices 

(computer, tablet, phone, etc) that were used for business purposes. This includes email 

accounts, calendars, CRM data, project management tools such as Asana, social media 

tools such as Chute, in addition to Autotask and all Company files.  

 

Solicitation & Distribution of Literature 
 

In order to ensure efficient operation of Visit SLO CAL’s business and to prevent 

disruption to employees, we have established control of solicitations and distribution of 

literature on Company property. Visit SLO CAL has enacted rules applicable to all 

employees governing solicitation, distribution of written material, and entry onto the 

premises and work areas. All employees are expected to comply strictly with these rules. 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 65 of 73 

Any employee who is in doubt concerning the application of these rules should consult 

with his or her supervisor.  

No employee shall solicit or promote support for any cause or organization during his or 

her working time or during the working time of the employee or employees at whom such 

activity is directed.  

No employee shall distribute or circulate any written or printed material in work areas at 

any time, or during his or her working time or during the working time of the employee or 

employees at whom such activity is directed.  

Under no circumstances will non-employees be permitted to solicit or to distribute written 

material for any purpose on Company property. 

 

Dress Code & Other Personal Standards 
 

Employees are expected to wear clothing appropriate for the nature of our business and 

the type of work performed. Clothing should be neat, clean, pressed and tasteful. Avoid 

clothing that can create a safety hazard. Department managers may issue more specific 

guidelines. 

Because each employee is a representative of Visit SLO CAL in the eyes of the public, 

each employee must report to work properly groomed, including washing, and the 

wearing appropriate clothing. Employees are expected to dress neatly and in a manner 

consistent with the nature of the work performed. Employees who report to work 

inappropriately dressed or groomed may be asked to clock out and return in acceptable 

attire. 

Acceptable clothing for management, sales, marketing, PR or office employees includes 

suits, sport coats, or dress shirts, with or without ties, and nice pants/slacks, blouses and 

sweaters with skirts or nice pants/slacks or dresses. T-shirts, tank or halter tops, shorts 

and casual shoes or sneakers are not permitted. All clothing should be clean and without 

rips or holes. 

All employees required to wear uniforms provided by Visit SLO CAL must take care of 

their uniforms and report any wear or damage to their supervisors. Instructions regarding 

cleaning and maintenance of uniforms will be provided. Supervisors will inform you of 

additional requirements regarding acceptable attire. Certain employees may be required 

to wear safety equipment or clothing. Any deviations from these guidelines must be 

approved by the President & CEO. 

Employees who need a reasonable accommodation because of religious beliefs, 

observances or practices should contact the President & CEO and discuss the need for 

accommodation. 

 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 66 of 73 

Conflicts of Interest 
 

All employees must avoid situations involving actual conflict of interest. Personal or 

romantic involvement with a competitor, supplier, or subordinate employee of Visit SLO 

CAL, which impairs an employee's ability to exercise good judgment on behalf of the 

Company, creates an actual or potential conflict of interest. Supervisor-subordinate 

romantic or personal relationships also can lead to supervisory problems, possible 

claims of sexual harassment, and morale problems. 

An employee involved in any of the types of relationships or situations described in this 

policy should immediately and fully disclose the relevant circumstances to the President 

& CEO, for a determination about whether a potential or actual conflict exists. If an 

actual or potential conflict is determined, Visit SLO CAL may take whatever corrective 

action appears appropriate according to the circumstances. Failure to disclose facts 

shall constitute grounds for disciplinary action. 

 

Other Employment 
 

While employed by Visit SLO CAL, employees are expected to devote their energies to 

their jobs with the Company. Employment that directly conflicts with the Company’s 

essential business interests and disrupts business operations is strictly prohibited. 

Employees who wish to engage in additional employment that may create a real conflict 

of interest must submit a written request to the President & CEO of Visit SLO CAL 

explaining the details of the additional employment. If the additional employment is 

authorized, Visit SLO CAL assumes no responsibility for it. Visit SLO CAL shall not 

provide workers’ compensation coverage or any other benefit for injuries occurring from 

or arising out of additional employment. Authorization to engage in additional 

employment can be revoked at any time. 

 

Lactation Policy 
 

Visit SLO CAL accommodates lactating employees by providing a reasonable amount of 

break time to any employee who desires to express breast milk for an infant child. The 

break time shall, if possible, run concurrently with any break time already provided to the 

employee. Any break time provided to express breast milk that does not run concurrently 

with break time already provided to the employee shall be unpaid. However, if providing 

such break time would seriously disrupt the operations of our business, we may deny 

break time to employees who wish to express breast milk. We will make reasonable 

efforts to provide employees who need a lactation accommodation with the use of a 

room or other private location that is located close to the employee’s work area, but may 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 67 of 73 

have to get creative in order to do so. Employees with private offices will be required to 

use their offices to express breast milk. 

Employees who desire lactation accommodations should contact their supervisor to 

request accommodations. 

Discrimination on the basis of sex includes discrimination based on breastfeeding and 

related medical conditions, and is unlawful. 

Smoke-Free Environment Policy

Visit SLO CAL is a smoke-free environment. Smoking, including e-cigarettes and vaping, 

is not permitted at any time in Company work areas or vehicles, or in client work areas 

or vehicles or on the Visit SLO CAL office property. 

Where smoking is allowed, smokers should be considerate of colleagues, customers 

and members of the public. Help to maintain a clean area by depositing cigarettes in 

appropriate containers and staying far enough away from doors so that smoke does not 

blow into the building and that the inside of the building or offices don’t smell of smoke. 

Employees who smoke must observe the same guidelines as non-smokers for the 

frequency and length of break periods. 

Employment Termination 

Employment with Visit SLO CAL is at-will and can be terminated by either the employee 

or Visit SLO CAL at any time, with or without cause or notice. However, if you decide to 

leave, at least two (2) weeks’ notice is requested in order for your supervisor to adjust 

plans to minimize interruption with the work schedule. Of course, as much notice as 

possible is appreciated by Visit SLO CAL and your co-workers. Employees who choose 

to resign from Visit SLO CAL are expected to submit a signed letter of resignation. This 

notice should be in the form of a written statement. If you fail to report to work for three 

consecutive days without informing management of the planned absence, we will 

assume that you have voluntarily resigned. 

Termination of employment is an inevitable part of personnel activity within any 

organization, and many of the reasons for termination are routine. Below are examples 

of some of the most common circumstances under which employment is terminated: 

Upon termination of employment, regardless of reason, and during the exit process, 

departing Visit SLO CAL employees are required to delete in front of the appropiate 

manager any business information or Visit SLO CAL data on any personal devices 

(computer, tablet, phone, etc) that were used for business purposes. This includes email 

accounts, calendars, CRM data, project management tools such as Asana, social media 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 68 of 73 

tools such as Chute, in addition to Datto (server) and all Company files. The server must 

be unsynced from your computer before files are deleted. 

 

Resignation - Voluntary termination results when an employee voluntarily resigns his or 

her employment at Visit SLO CAL, or fails to report to work for three consecutively 

scheduled workdays without notice to, or approval by, his or her supervisor.  

 

Involuntary Termination - Violation of Visit SLO CAL policies and rules may warrant 

disciplinary action. Employee discipline can include a wide range of disciplinary actions, 

from verbal counseling and/or written warnings, up to suspension or termination. 

However, Visit SLO CAL will not necessarily follow any particular path or progression in 

any disciplinary action it decides to take. The fact that Visit SLO CAL may attempt to 

correct a performance or conduct problem does not create any obligation by Visit SLO 

CAL to continue such efforts or to attempt them in any other instances. Accordingly, 

circumstances may sometimes result in immediate suspension or termination of 

employment, and counseling or warnings may not be given. Any disciplinary actions Visit 

SLO CAL might take in correcting problems with an employee should not be considered 

to limit the freedom of Visit SLO CAL or any employee to terminate the at-will 

employment relationship.  

 

Layoff - Involuntary employment termination initiated by Visit SLO CAL for non- 

disciplinary reasons may become necessary from time to time due to reorganization or 

reduced business. Seniority within a particular job classification will be considered but 

will not be the rule in the event of a layoff and the subsequent rehire of previous 

employees. Every effort will be made to rehire laid-off employees with due consideration 

given to skills, abilities, and past performance of each employee. 

 

In the case of termination due to resignation, retirement or permanent reduction in the 

work force, your accrued vacation time will be paid. Unused vacation time or sick time is 

not paid. If you leave Visit SLO CAL in good standing, you may be considered for re-

employment. Upon resigning from Visit SLO CAL, please continue to provide us with an 

accurate address for at least one year for tax purposes. All Company-owned property, 

including computers, phones, internet hot-spot boxes, vehicles, keys, uniforms, badges 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 69 of 73 

and credit cards, must be returned immediately upon termination.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 70 of 73 

Confirmation of Receipt 

_______________________________________ 

 
  

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 71 of 73 

Confirmation of Receipt 

I have received my copy of the Visit SLO CAL employee handbook. I understand and 

agree that it is solely my responsibility to read, understand and familiarize myself with 

the policies and procedures contained in the handbook and to follow them upon date of 

signature below. Failing to follow the policies and proceedures outlined in the employee 

handbook may lead to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. 

I understand and agree that nothing in the employee handbook creates or is intended to 

create a promise or representation of continued employment and that employment at 

Visit SLO CAL is employment at-will; employment may be terminated at the will of either 

the Company or myself. My signature certifies that I understand that the foregoing 

agreement on at-will status is the sole and entire agreement between Visit SLO CAL and 

myself concerning the duration of my employment and the circumstances under which 

my employment may be terminated. It supersedes all prior agreements, understandings, 

and representations concerning my employment with Visit SLO CAL. 

I understand that except for employment at-will status, any and all policies or practices 

can be changed at any time by the Company. Visit SLO CAL reserves the right to 

change my hours, wages, and working conditions at any time. I understand and agree 

that other than the President & CEO of Visit SLO CAL, no manager, supervisor, or 

representative of the Company has authority to enter into any agreement, express or 

implied, for employment for any specific period of time, or to make any agreement for 

employment other than at-will; only the President & CEO has the authority to make any 

such agreement and then only in writing, signed by the President & CEO. 

Employee’s Signature______________________________________________ 

Employee’s Printed Name __________________________________________ 

Date ____________________________ 
DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 72 of 73 

Confirmation of Harassment, Discrimination and 

Retaliation Prevention Policy 

I have received my copy of Visit SLO CAL’s Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation 

Prevention policy. I understand and agree that it is my responsibility to read, understand 

and familiarize myself with this policy. 

I understand that Visit SLO CAL is committed to providing a work environment that is 

free from harassment, discrimination and retaliation. My signature certifies that I 

understand that I must conform to and abide by the rules and requirements described in 

this policy. 

Employee's Signature_____________________________________________________ 

Employee's Printed Name _________________________________________________ 

Date ____________________________ 

DRAFT



Visit SLO CAL • Employee Handbook • August 2019 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 73 of 73 

Confirmation of Electronic and Social Media Policy 

I have received my copy of Visit SLO CAL’s Electronic and Social Media Policy. I 

understand and agree that it is my responsibility to read, understand and familiarize 

myself with this policy. 

By agreeing to this policy, I provide my supervisor permission to confirm that any of my 

personal devices that were used for business purposes are wiped of Visit SLO CAL 

data, including any phone, tablet or computer upon termination of employment. 

My signature certifies that I understand that I must conform to and abide by the rules and 

requirements described in this policy. 

Employee's Signature_____________________________________________________ 

Employee's Printed Name _________________________________________________ 

Date ____________________________ 

DRAFT









Advocacy Plan 

1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. Overview
a. Purpose for Advocacy
b. Vision, Mission & Values

II. Analysis
a. Objectives
b. Public Policy Platform
c. Identify Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities & Threats (SWOT)
d. Targeted Audiences
e. Strategies

III. Execution & Tactics
a. Procedures for Action on Public Policy Platform
b. Establish targeted messages based on unique issues and audience
c. Identify key influential messengers assigned to each audience and issue
d. Timelines and Ownership
e. Message Training

IV. Desired Results
a. Establish Metrics to Measure Success
b. Review and Update Plan

DRAFT



Advocacy Plan 
 

 2 

 
 
 

OVERVIEW 

Purpose for Advocacy 
 
The primary purpose of developing an Advocacy Plan is to promote the mission of Visit SLO CAL 
with respect to issues of public policy and community sentiment.  
 
Visit SLO CAL’s advocacy efforts are intended to ensure that the tourism industry’s voice is 
represented on issues that matter to our community of investors and partners, and that the 
industry’s views and wishes are genuinely considered when decisions are being made that impact our 
industry.   
 
As part of Strategic Direction 2020, Visit SLO CAL set five initiatives focused on Advocacy. 
 

1. Develop a plan for advocacy on behalf of stakeholders 
2. Develop an engaged and high-functioning tourism culture for San Luis Obispo County 
3. Develop and execute a local communications strategy 
4. Inspire and active tourism ambassadors 
5. Identify, develop, and activate relationships 

 
The Advocacy Plan is meant to deliver on the above initiatives.  
 
Visit SLO CAL’s advocacy efforts occur in concert with Board direction for items which impact 
tourism and hospitality in SLO CAL, the Central Coast region, the State of California and 
Nationally.  The President and CEO along with the Director of Community Engagement and 
Advocacy will advocate for projects and programs that improve the quality of life for our residents 
while at the same time positively impacting the tourism and hospitality culture of SLO CAL. 
 
As part of Strategic Direction 2020 and Visit SLO CAL’s initiative to Develop a long-term Tourism 
Infrastructure Master Plan/Destination Management Strategy (DMS), this Advocacy Plan has been 
informed by the DMS and will serve as a tool for staff when implementing the DMS 
recommendations. 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



Advocacy Plan 
 

 3 

 

Vision, Mission & Values 
 
The Vision of Visit SLO CAL is: A vibrant and prosperous San Luis Obispo County, fueled by a 
collaborative and flourishing tourism industry. 
 
The Mission of Visit SLO CAL is to: Inspire travel and foster our unique experiences to create 
life-long ambassadors and economic growth for San Luis Obispo County. 
 
The Values of Visit SLO CAL are: 

• Future Focused 
o Delivering today with an eye on tomorrow 

• Collaboration 
o Our partnerships inform and support economic success 

• Drive 
o We bring enthusiasm to our initiatives and a focus on results 

• Stewardship 
o We are mindful of our resources and the SLO CAL brand 

 
 
 

ANALYSIS 

Objectives 
 
Visit SLO CAL’s Advocacy Plan’s primary objective is to increase the awareness, influence and 
unified voice of the SLO CAL Travel & Tourism industry among the general public, community 
leaders and stakeholders, while sharing the economic impact and quality of life enhancements that 
our organization and tourism contribute to the region. 
 

Public Policy Platform 
 
Promote SLO CAL as a Visitor Destination 
Visit SLO CAL supports initiatives and policies that create opportunities to market SLO CAL as a 
premier destination for domestic and international travel while maintaining and enhancing the 
quality of life for residents. 
 
Advocate for Industry Needs that Demonstrate Tourism’s Commitment to Local Values 
Visit SLO CAL believes that a healthy and prosperous business climate is critical to support ongoing 
investments into the social, environmental and economic future of the region. Visit SLO CAL will  

DRAFT



Advocacy Plan 
 

 4 

 
advocate for policies that help the region’s tourism businesses grow their impact. The organization 
will support policies that responsibly attract, develop and retain a qualified workforce, increase the 
availability of workforce housing and transportation options, increase the competitiveness of local 
business and increase the availability of people to travel to SLO CAL.  
 
Facilitate Travel to and Within SLO CAL and California 
Visit SLO CAL supports efforts to facilitate travel to and within SLO CAL and California, including 
the enhancement, maintenance and repair of transportation infrastructure, the promotion of air 
travel to SLO CAL by domestic and international travelers, the dissemination of information that 
facilitates travel to SLO CAL, and the elimination of political, economic and regulatory barriers to 
travel. Visit SLO CAL also supports economic initiatives that will directly or indirectly attract and 
sustain travel to SLO CAL.  
 
Promote and Advocate for Resource Stewardship Initiatives that Positively Impact the 
Sustainability of the Destination and Enhance the Visitor Experience 
Visit SLO CAL believes that our natural environment is a central tourism and economic asset in our 
region, and therefore supports policies, projects and programs that protect SLO CAL’s natural 
resources and landscapes. Visit SLO CAL will advocate for equitable policies that maintain our 
oceans and beaches, watersheds, open space, water and air quality to meet the ecological, 
environmental and recreational needs of our visitors and residents.  
 
Promote and Advocate for Long-Term Development Projects that Positively Impact the 
Visitor Experience 
Visit SLO CAL believes that public and private sector infrastructure and development projects that 
will enhance our ability to market SLO CAL as a visitor destination are critical to the organization’s 
ability to accomplish its mission over the long term. Relevant projects include the development of 
meeting and conference facilities, improvements to transportation corridors, public transportation 
and parking, creation and expansion of arts and cultural institutions, and public path and trail 
systems for biking, equestrian and hiking access.  
 
Enhance Quality of Life Issues 
Visit SLO CAL believes that quality of life issues significantly impact the visitor experience. The 
organization will support initiatives that maintain and enhance both the quality of the visitor 
experience and quality of life for local residents with respect to the safety, cleanliness and well-being 
of SLO CAL’s neighborhoods and communities.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



Advocacy Plan 

5 

Identify Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities & Threats (SWOT) 

Strengths: 
• Unanimous direction from the Visit SLO CAL Board, as outlined in Strategic Direction

2020, to advocate for the industry and destination
• Sole unified tourism voice for SLO CAL
• Financial resources to support community engagement and advocacy
• Trailblazing approach to solving big challenges
• Willingness to initiate change
• Relationships and influence with other advocacy groups like CalTravel
• Positive, and in some cases, strong relationships with local, state and federal elected

officials
• Increased staff capacity with experience in policy, advocacy and community engagement
• Destination Management Strategy providing key recommendations, approved by

community leaders and board of directors, outlining areas requiring countywide
advocacy and support

Weaknesses: 
• Lack of awareness of organization outside of community leaders and tourism industry
• Lack of deep, team member organizational experience in the advocacy space
• Lack of meaningful and proactive relationships with local and regional media
• Lack of any substantial relationship or engagement with residents

Opportunities: 
• Elevate the visibility and influence of the Travel & Tourism industry and the leaders that

represent Travel & Tourism amongst local regional, state and national decision-makers
• Foster increased access and relationship between elected officials and Visit SLO CAL

investors
• Collaboration with like-minded organizations to accomplish bigger goals and create an

environment where it is difficult for others to say “no” when the Travel & Tourism
industry is engaged

• Establishing deeper community and resident relationships that grow awareness of the
organization and lead to greater influence

Threats: 
• Lack of understanding amongst industry or community leaders of the purpose of

advocacy efforts on behalf of the tourism and destination
• Diminished value for the tourism industry, its efforts and quality of life and economic

impact to the community
• Frustrating the elected officials who don’t agree with Visit SLO CAL’s advocacy efforts

or positions leading them to be less supportive of Visit SLO CAL initiatives

DRAFT



Advocacy Plan 
 

 6 

 
• Investors who think our efforts should solely be spent on marketing, not understanding 

the “Why” behind advocacy 
• On-going changes of elected officials 

 

Targeted Audiences 
 
In an effort to make the plan more efficient and effective, key influencer and stakeholder groups 
need to be determined and prioritized.  An example of these groups likely includes: 
 

• Elected Officials 
o Local 
o Regional 
o State 
o Federal 

• Civic and Nonprofit Leaders 
• Industry and Community Leaders 
• Residents 
• Local/Regional Media Outlets 

 
 
Based on the groups, mentioned above, determine whether they have a: 

1. Positive attitude with much power (nurture these) 
2. Negative attitude with much power (convinces, communicate, confront, convert) 
3. Positive attitude with little power (seed to empower them through information) 
4. Negative attitude with little power (keeps them informed, do not burn any bridges, do not 

waste unnecessary energy) 

Strategies 
In order to achieve the most successful results, the following strategies have been developed: 
 

• Advise and assist the Board of Directors of Visit SLO CAL with respect to public policy 
issues that could significantly affect the interest of Visit SLO CAL, its investors, its partners 
and the greater SLO CAL tourism community; 

• Take positions consistent with the purpose and guidelines set forth in the Advocacy Plan on 
public policy issues, including legislative and ballot measures and regulations, at the local, 
state and federal level;  

• Educate elected officials and other key decision makers about the importance of the tourism 
industry to the well-being, quality of life and economic vibrancy of SLO CAL;  

• Obtain a “seat at the table” to influence outcomes; 
• Cultivate and engage local relationships and work with like-minded organizations to generate 

word-of-mouth support for the industry; and 
• Collaborate with other organizations whose public policy objectives coincide with the goals 

of Visit SLO CAL 

DRAFT



Advocacy Plan 
 

 7 

 

Execution & Tactics 
 

Procedures for Action on Public Policy Platform 
Consistent with the Public Policy Platform, the President & CEO and Director of Community 
Engagement and Advocacy will identify issues at the local, state and federal level where engagement 
will enhance the effectiveness and contributions of the SLO CAL tourism industry.  
 

• Visit SLO CAL staff may take actions on issues that meet the criteria listed below, are 
consistent with the Public Policy Platform or that Visit SLO CAL has taken prior positions 
that establish a guiding precedent for future actions. Any formal actions taken shall be 
reported out by the President & CEO and/or Director of Community Engagement and 
Advocacy at the following Executive Committee and Board of Directors meetings.  
 

 Answer Must Be 
Does the issue affect more 
than one community in SLO 
CAL? 
 

 
Yes 

Is there reasonable belief that 
our lodging investors may hold 
divergent opinions? 
 

 
No 

Does this issue have a direct 
impact on the Travel & 
Tourism industry? 
 

 
Yes 

Is the outcome likely to 
change if Visit SLO CAL takes 
a position on the issue? 

 
Yes 

 
 

• For advocacy in support of or opposition to specific legislative or regulatory measures that 
do not meet the criteria listed above and/or are not clearly articulated within the Public 
Policy Platform, the President & CEO and/or Director of Community Engagement and  
Advocacy will first bring the issue to the Executive Committee for a vote on a support, 
neutral with comments, oppose, or no action position. The issue and the decision of the 
Executive Committee, along with any subsequent public actions taken by the organization 
will be reported out for discussion and further positioning at the following meeting of the 
Board of Directors.  

 

DRAFT



Advocacy Plan 
 

 8 

For each issue brought to the Executive Committee for action, the Visit SLO CAL staff will prepare 
a policy brief for the Executive Committee that will summarize merits of the issue, considering key 
questions such as: 
 

1. Who/what organization brought forward the issue (Visit SLO CAL Board, investors, a 
coalition partner, government, industry association such as CalTravel, etc.)? 

2. What is the relevant background, stated objective and precedent for this issue? 
3. How does the issue relate to the Public Policy Platform?  
4. How is the lodging community impacted by this issue?  

a. Which segments are impacted? 
b. Does this policy create an environment of winners and losers within the industry? 

5. What is the benefit to the organization or industry if we engage on this issue? 
6. What is the risk to the organization or industry if we do not engage on this issue? 
7. Does engagement on this issue strengthen or detract from our organization and industry 

reputation?  
8. Who is on the other side of the issue, and what is the risk to the organization of taking a 

competing position? 
9. Are there key partners, influencers or decision-makers who will object to our engagement on 

the issue? Who are they and what are their objections? Can these concerns be resolved or 
mitigated? 

10. Is there an existing coalition of stakeholders we would be joining, or are we the lone voice? 
Do we own the advocacy or are we are partner in it? 

11. In what venue would we be advocating, and are there alternative strategies that might be 
considered? 

12. Who is the most effective messenger to deliver the advocacy message (Visit SLO CAL staff, 
board member(s), industry representatives, coalition partner, etc.)? 

13. What finances are needed and what will they be used for? 
14. What is the timeline? 

Establish targeted messages based on unique issues and audience 
Each issue will require a number of detailed target messages based on the audience they are designed 
to reach.  In order for those messages to be effective, they need to solve for the “why” for each 
audience. Why should they care and how will this information assist them going forward?  From 
there, all messages and audiences should be prioritized. 
 

 

Identify key influential groups/messengers assigned to each audience and 
issue 
In order for the plan to be effective, it is important to determine what key influential 
groups/messengers are available and willing to help advance Visit SLO CAL’s advocacy initiatives 
and which messages they are most prepared to advocate on.  Groups/Messengers could include: 
 

• Staff 

DRAFT



Advocacy Plan 
 

 9 

o To the extent possible, all team members are encouraged to engage in Visit SLO 
CAL’s advocacy efforts. Staff will receive regular briefings on current advocacy 
efforts and, where appropriate, resourced with background and messaging to serve as 
effective ambassadors for the policy and community engagement objectives.  The 
following individuals will take the lead in executing this plan: 
 President & CEO 
 Director of Community Engagement and Advocacy 

• Board of Directors 
o Executive Committee 

 Board Chair 
 Board Vice Chair 
 Board Past Chair 

 
o Participating in or leading the effort on controversial issues can often be problematic 

for the organization.  As such the risk/benefit analysis outlined in the Procedures for 
Action on Public Policy Platform will be completed in advance to determine the 
probability of achieving the desired outcome and identifying the most effective  
messenger. In cases where the organization cannot take the lead, it will look to 
engage and impower industry investors and leaders. 
 

Message Training 
In order to assure effective communications each messenger will need to be provided current policy 
positions and talking points to effectively convey individual issue messaging to the appropriate 
audience.  Messengers include: 

• Staff 
• Board 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Desired Results 

Establish Metrics to Measure Success 
As we determine our path forward, it is important to understand the “headlines” and define the 
success of our Community Engagement and Advocacy efforts through the establishment of key 
metrics that can be used to track outcomes of our endeavors.  The metrics should be defined by the 
phrase “we will know we are successful when there is/are ….” 

DRAFT



Advocacy Plan 
 

 10 

 
• Broad overall awareness of Visit SLO CAL as a DMMO 
• Influence of/with elected officials  
• Organizations partnering with us to promote common goals  
• An increase in the number of presentations regarding the DMS recommendations or the 

public policy platform given by Visit SLO CAL staff annually 
• Positive local and regional media placement annually 
• An annual review/update of the plan 

 

Review and Update Plan 
Areas of focus are subject to change based on new issues that develop.  As such, the public policy 
platform should be updated annually prior to the start of the new fiscal year.  
 
 
 

DRAFT



1100 New York Avenue, NW Suite 450 Washington, D.C. 20005   |   TEL 202.408.8422   |   ustravel.org 1

TRAVEL TRENDS INDEX JUNE 2019

JUNE TRAVEL TRENDS INDEX
The Travel Trends Index measures the direction and pace of travel volume to and within the U.S. on a monthly basis. The index 
includes a Current Travel Index (CTI) and a Leading Travel Index (LTI). Both the CTI and the LTI include subcomponents (domestic, 
international, leisure and business). 

Analysis provided by

CTI reading of 51.2 in June 2019 indicates that travel to or within the U.S. grew 2.4% in 
June 2019 compared to June 2018.

LTI predicts travel will moderate through December 2019, a result of softer growth in 
domestic travel and stagnant international inbound travel.

Overall travel volume (person trips to or within the United States involving a hotel stay or air travel) 
grew at a slower year-over-year rate in June 2019 compared to May 2019. Domestic travel experienced 
uneven growth supported entirely by the leisure segment; domestic business and international inbound 
travel stalled. 

HIGHLIGHTS:

■■ The Current Travel Index (CTI) has registered at or above the 50 
mark for 114 straight months, as the industry sustains its tenth 
consecutive year of expansion.

■■ The CTI was positive in June, registering 51.2 (indicating 2.4% 
y/y growth). This is slower than the 6-month moving average 
(3.0%).

■■ International inbound travel contracted 0.8% in June, bringing 
its six-month trend below zero for the first time since 
September 2015. The Leading Travel Index (LTI) projects that 
inbound travel growth will hover just below zero over the next 
six months, registering around -0.2%.

* For CTI and LTI definitions, please see below.

SOURCE: Oxford Economics, U.S. Travel Association

50

JUNE TRAVEL TRENDS INDEX

Index (>50=expansion, <50=decline)

49

Jun 2018

Jul 2
018

Aug 2018

Sep 2018

Oct 
2018

Nov 2018

Dec 2
018

Jan 2019

Feb 2019

Mar 2
019

Apr 2
019

May
 2019

Jun 2019

Jul 2
019

Aug 2019

50

51

52

53

3-mo, 50.9

6-mo, 50.9
51.2

LEADING TRAVEL INDEXCURRENT TRAVEL INDEX

Sep 2019

Oct 
2019

Nov 2019

Dec 2
019

■■ Domestic leisure travel extended its growth trend in June 
(3.8%), on par with its six-month trend. The business segment 
faltered, declining 0.2% following the appearance of strong 
growth in May (3.4%). 

■■ The six-month LTI reading of 50.9 indicates that total U.S. travel 
volume is expected to grow at a rate of around 1.8% through 
December 2019. Over the same period, domestic travel is 
projected to grow by 2.0%, while international inbound travel 
will remain flat. 

The Oxford/U.S. Travel Current Travel Index (CTI)  measures the direction and pace of travel volume to and within the U.S. on a monthly basis compared to the same month in the prior year. The index is comprised of a weighting of hotel 
room demand and air passenger enplanements that represents the overall volume of travelers each month. A score above 50 indicates expansion. A score below 50 indicates decline.

The Oxford/U.S. Travel Leading Travel Index (LTI)  is an indicator of the future direction and pace of travel volume to and within the U.S. over the coming three and six months compared to the same period in the prior year. The LTIs 
represent average readings over the next three and six months. The LTI econometric model is based on data sets that have demonstrated to predict near-term future travel: online travel searches and bookings for future travel, consumer 
travel intentions data, and economic fundamentals. A score above 50 indicates expansion. A score below 50 indicates decline.



1100 New York Avenue, NW Suite 450 Washington, D.C. 20005   |   TEL 202.408.8422   |   ustravel.org 2

TRAVEL TRENDS INDEX

JUNE TRAVEL TRENDS INDEX (CONT.)

DETAILED RESULTS:
Domestic travel demand increased 2.6% in June, solely supported by leisure segment growth. Business travel demand fell modestly 
(-0.2%) as it did in April, drawing the 6-month moving average down to 2.2%. Looking ahead, leisure travel is anticipated to 
continue growing, albeit at approximately half its current pace. Vacation intentions are gradually slowing, while forward-looking 
bookings and searches point to resilient, yet softer growth. 

International inbound travel decreased in June (-0.8%), marking the third month of contraction in the first six months of 2019. 
The pace of international inbound travel is expected to remain constrained and may dip into negative territory over the coming 
months. 

CURRENT TRAVEL INDEX (CTI) LEADING TRAVEL INDEX (LTI) 6-MO LTI VS. CTI 6-MO AVG.

6-MONTH AVG APRIL MAY JUNE 3-MONTH* 6-MONTH** DIRECTION SPEED

TOTAL MARKET 51.5 51.3 51.8 51.2 50.9 50.9 Increasing Slower

INTERNATIONAL 49.9 52.2 50.3 49.6 49.8 49.9 Decreasing -

DOMESTIC 51.6 51.2 51.9 51.3 51.1 51.0 Increasing Slower

BUSINESS 51.1 49.9 51.7 49.9 50.8 50.8 Increasing Slower

LEISURE 51.9 51.7 52.0 51.9 51.2 51.0 Increasing Slower

* Average outlook reading for Jul 2019 to Sep 2019
** Average outlook reading for Jul 2019 to Dec 2019

Index (>50 = expansion, <50 = decline) Index (>50 = expansion, <50 = decline)

JUNE DOMESTIC AND INTERNATIONAL TRAVEL INDEX JUNE DOMESTIC BUSINESS AND LEISURE TRAVEL INDEX

48

50

54

52

Jun 2018

Jul 2
018

Aug 2018

Sep 2018

Oct 
2018

Nov 2018

Dec 2
018

Jan 2019

Feb 2019

Mar 2
019

Apr 2
019

May
 2019

Jun 2019

Jul 2
019

Aug 2019

LEADING TRAVEL INDEXCURRENT TRAVEL INDEX

3-mo, 49.8

6-mo, 51.0

6-mo, 49.9

3-mo, 51.1

INTERNATIONAL DOMESTIC

Sep 2019

Oct 
2019

Nov 2019

Dec 2
019

46

CTI 3-MONTH LTI* 6-MONTH LTI**

MAY INDEX 51.8 51.0 50.9

JUNE INDEX 51.2 50.9 50.9

DIRECTION AND 
SPEED

Travel demand 
increased; at a slower 
rate than the previous 
month

Travel is expected to 
grow over the coming 
3 months; at a slower 
rate

Travel is expected to 
grow over the coming 
6 months; at a slower 
rate

DAVID HUETHER
Senior Vice President, Research

* Average outlook reading for Jul 2019 to Sep 2019
** Average outlook reading for Jul 2019 to Dec 2019

In June, travel posted its poorest performance in nine months 
due to flat domestic business travel growth and a decline 
in international inbound travel. While some factors cannot 
be controlled, the continued promotion of the U.S. in the 

competitive global travel market is more critical than ever. 
Congress and the administration must secure Brand USA’s 

long-term reauthorization immediately.

The Oxford/U.S. Travel Current Travel Index (CTI)  measures the direction and pace of travel volume to and within the U.S. on a monthly basis compared to the same month in the prior year. The index is comprised of a weighting of hotel 
room demand and air passenger enplanements that represents the overall volume of travelers each month. A score above 50 indicates expansion. A score below 50 indicates decline.

The Oxford/U.S. Travel Leading Travel Index (LTI)  is an indicator of the future direction and pace of travel volume to and within the U.S. over the coming three and six months compared to the same period in the prior year. The LTIs 
represent average readings over the next three and six months. The LTI econometric model is based on data sets that have demonstrated to predict near-term future travel: online travel searches and bookings for future travel, consumer 
travel intentions data, and economic fundamentals. A score above 50 indicates expansion. A score below 50 indicates decline.

49

50

52

53

51

54

3-mo, 50.8

6-mo, 51.0

6-mo, 50.8

3-mo, 51.2

Jun 2018

Jul 2
018

Aug 2018

Sep 2018

Oct 
2018

Nov 2018

Dec 2
018

Jan 2019

Feb 2019

Mar 2
019

Apr 2
019

May
 2019

Jun 2019

Jul 2
019

Aug 2019

LEADING TRAVEL INDEXCURRENT TRAVEL INDEX

LEISURE BUSINESS

Sep 2019

Oct 
2019

Nov 2019

Dec 2
019


	1. Executive Committee Agenda.2019.08.13.v7
	Visit SLO CAL Conference Room
	1334 Marsh Street, San Luis Obispo, CA 93401

	2. Executive Committee Minutes.2019.07.03 v2
	Visit SLO CAL Executive Committee
	1.    CALL TO ORDER: Clint Pearce
	STAFF PRESENT: Chuck Davison, Brendan Pringle
	ANNOUNCEMENTS
	None.
	CONSENT AGENDA
	Public Comment – None.
	Committee Discussion.
	ACTION: Moved by Jamison/Eads to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.
	Motion carried: 4:0
	CEO REPORT
	BUSINESS ITEMS
	ACTION: Moved by Jamison/Graves to recommend that the Board appoint Mark Eads as Vice Chair of the Executive Committee.
	ACTION: Moved by Graves/Eads to recommend Board approval of the Community Engagement Plan.
	7. Surfers of Tomorrow Sponsorship
	Davison outlined a title sponsorship opportunity with the World Surf League’s Surfers of Tomorrow of two competitions – the Pismo Beach Open, an existing event that will occur in January, and the establishment of a second event in Morro Bay that would...
	Public Comment – None.
	Committee Discussion.
	ACTION: Moved by Jamison/Graves to recommend Board approval to allow the President & CEO to enter into contract negotiations with World Surf League’s Surfers of Tomorrow, establishing a sponsorship of $40k cash and up to $20k in-kind sponsorship for t...
	Motion carried: 4:0
	8. Oceano Dunes Advocacy
	California Coastal Commission (CCC) and California State Parks (CSP) are struggling for control of the future of the Oceano Dunes State Park. CCC and CSP believe that their different sets of guidelines supersede each others’ and CCC believes that it i...
	Public Comment – None.
	Committee Discussion.
	ACTION: Moved by Jamison/Eads to allow Visit SLO CAL to advocate on behalf of the tourism community supporting the Oceano Dunes and the need for it to remain open as a critical economic driver for the destination.
	Motion carried: 4:0
	10. TMD Renewal Update
	Davison noted that Visit SLO CAL is waiting for an update from the County on the release of petitions. Guy Savage, Assistant CAO, informed us that the county did not need anything from Visit SLO CAL at this time in order to move the process forward. D...
	Public Comment – None.
	Committee Discussion.
	ADJOURNMENT

	3. 2018-2019 SLOCAL Financial Workbook - 06.30.19_FINAL
	4. Balance Sheet Previous Year Comparison_06.30.19
	5. Visit SLO CAL Updated Handbook.2019.08
	6. CLIA MOU
	7. Advocacy Plan Final v4
	OVERVIEW
	Purpose for Advocacy
	Vision, Mission & Values
	ANALYSIS
	Objectives
	Public Policy Platform
	Identify Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities & Threats (SWAT)
	Targeted Audiences
	Strategies
	Execution & Tactics
	Procedures for Action on Public Policy Platform
	Establish targeted messages based on unique issues and audience
	Identify key influential groups/messengers assigned to each audience and issue
	Message Training
	Desired Results
	Establish Metrics to Measure Success
	Review and Update Plan

	8. Travel-Trends-Index_June 2018



